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2020 30

2016 JPX 400
2020 30

4 10,733,066
19,154

8,679

156,465

97,318

1,965

11,016,647

4 (7,961)
9 (15,315)
(2,933)

12 (4,044)
11 (12,448)
(2,037)

(€19)

(2,879)

(47,648)

10,968,999

2020 12 18

J.P.
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2019 30

2016 JPX 400
2019 30

4 15,051,284
25,400
25,636
286,139
62,301

1,571

15,452,331

9 (10,623)
(3,890)

12 (915)
11 (9,807)
(3,226)

(716)

(6,309)

(2,612)

(7,257)

(45,355)

15,406,976
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2019 2020 30

2016 JPX 400
2020 30

7 631,136

323,406

954,542

9 (20,870)
12 (3,162)
11 (10,027)
(2,541)

(693)

13 (2,833)
10 (380)

(1,347)

(41,853)

912,689

(49,530)

863,159

88/299



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 2019 30

2016 JPX 400
2019 30

7 (1,657,450)

388,624

(1,268,826)

9 (22,360)
12 (3,872)
11 (10,577)
(2,528)

)

(721)

13 (2,898)
10 (317)

(1,407)

(44,694)

(1,313,520)

(59,535)

(1,373,055)
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30

2016 JPX 400
2020 30

15,406,976

(5,013,063)

(5,013,063)

14 (288,073)

863,159

10,968,999
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2019 30

2016 JPX 400
2019 30

17,051,803

14 (271,772)

(1,373,055)

15,406,976
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2016 JPX 400
2020 30

863,159

(323,406)

49,530

589,283

4,318,218
7,961
16,563

(5,668)

(35,017)

4,891,340

(49,530)

329,652

5,171,462

(5,013,063)

(288,073)

(5,301,136)

(129,674)

286,139

156,465
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30

2016 JPX 400
2019 30

(1,373,055)

(388,624)

59,535

(1,702,144)

1,701,596
(5,580)
(5,540)
(4,389)

46,657

30,600

(59,535)

388,008

359,073

(271,772)

(271,772)

87,301

198,838

286,139
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EEA AIFM

14

225 2016 TOPIX

201612

2016 225

BNP

2016 TOPIX 2016

2016 225
11 27

JPX

TOPIX
JPX 400

FDI

2014 12 2018 25

AIFMD
NON-EEA AlIF

2020 30
2016 JPX 400 2016
2018 S&P 500

201609
2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400
2018 S&P 500
10
BNP
BNP
10
2016 JPX 400 2016 10 14
2016 10 24 2018 S&P 500 2018
225 500
500 TOPIX
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NAV
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2020 30
IFRIC 23 2017 2019
IAS 12
)
IFRIC 23
2020 30
IFRS 17 2017 2023
b)
O
IFRS IFRS
FDI
(i)
J.P
NAV
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®

O]

2018 S&P 500
2018 S&P 500
2018 S&P 500 2018 S&P 500
@i
FDI

@
@
®
2020 30 2016 TOPIX 2016 225 2018
S&P 500 2020 30 2016 JPX
400 (i)

D) IAS 32
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Q)

15

Q)

Q)

€))

FDI

CovID-19 2019 12

COVID-19

COVID-19
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COVID-19
2016 TOPIX 2020 30
6,197,618
6,197,618
(8,715)
(8.715)
FDI
61,889,030
2016 225 2020 30
18,561,403
18,561,403
(5,490)
(5,490)
FDI
185,559,130
2018 S&P 500 2020 30
293,552
251
57

293,860
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2019

2016

30

2016

2016

FDI
2,931,790

JPX 400

FDI
107,251,050

TOPIX

FDI
105,651,700

225
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(681)

(681)

2020 30

10,733,066

10,733,066

(7,961)

(7,961)

2019 30

10,566,401

10,566,401

(1,231)

(1,231)

2019 30

24,338,763

2,774

24,341,537
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FDI
243,415,370
2018 S&P 500 * 2019 30
27,134
14
1
27,149
* 2018 11 27
**500
FDI
271,490
2016 JPX 400 2019 30
15,051,097
187
15,051,284
FDI
150,512,840
(®)
©

104/299



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@
2020 30 2019 30
ep 2016 2016 2018 2016
2020 30 TOPIX 225 S&P 500 JPX 400
AA- 6,338,433 18,761,763 293,816 10,881,570
A 124,472 165,000 2,421 97,318
ep 2016 2016 2018 2016
2019 30 TOPIX 225 S&P 500 *  JPX 400
AA- 10,820,198 24,622,102 27,147 15,337,423
A 90,540 166,336 185 62,301
* 2018 11 27
©)
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2016 TOPIX
2020 30

8,715
1,520
10,589
712
11,620
30,610
1,272
862

6,428,371

6,494,271

2016 225
2020 30

5,490
4,127
16,418
845
17,966
3,067
1,992
26,514
1,239

18,885,154

18,962,812

2018 S&P 500
2020 30

681

111
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141
330
116

30
167

302,178

303,754

2016 JPX 400
2020 30

7,961
2,933
12,448
31
15,315
4,044
2,037

2,879

47,648

2016 TOPIX
2019 30

1,231
2,487
9,264
788
8,264
20,646
2,381
1,179
3,148
2,602

10,896,740

10,948,730

107/299



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2016 225
2019 30

5,611
15,009
653
18,087
691
3,190
1,280
3,209

24,778,762

24,826,492

2018 S&P 500 *
2019 30

23

43

64
12
18
33

28,206

28,408

2018 11 27

2016 JPX 400
2019 30

3,890
9,807
716
10,623
915

3,226
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2,612
6,309

7,257

45,355

109/299



EDINETOOOO

OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 30

2016 TOPIX
6,197,618 6,197,618
6,197,618 6,197,618
(8,715) (8,715)
(8,715) (8,715)
2016 225
18,561,403 18,561,403
18,561,403 18,561,403
(5,490) (5,490)
(5,490) (5,490)
2018 S&P 500
293,552 293,552
251 251
57 57
293,803 57 293,860
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2016 JPX 400

2016 TOPIX

2016 225

2018 S&P 500

*

2019
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(681) (681)

(681) (681)

10,733,066 10,733,066

10,733,066 10,733,066
(7,961) (7.,961)
(7,961) (7,961)

30

10,566,401 10,566,401
10,566,401 10,566,401
(1,231) (1,231)
(1,231) (1,231)
24,338,763 24,338,763
2,774 2,774
24,341,537 24,341,537
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27,134 27,134
14 14
1 1
27,148 1 27,149
**
* 2018 11 27
**500
2016 JPX 400
15,051,097 15,051,097
187 187
15,051,284 15,051,284
IFRS 13
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2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

30

30
2016 TOPIX
2016 225

2016 JPX 400

30

2018 S&P 500

30

30

2018 S&P 500
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242,439 (8,715)

288,321 (5,490)

241,094 (7,961)
2,649 251
(624)
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2019 30
2019 30
2016 TOPIX 328,021 (1,231)
2016 225 428,062 2,774
2016 JPX 400 350,548 187
2019 30
2018 S&P 500 * 1,002 14
* 2018 11 27
2019 30
2019 30
2018 S&P 500 *
* 2018 11 27
7.
2016 TOPIX 2020 30
48,687
33,932
349,220
(7.,484)
424,355
2016 225 2020 30
271,328
43,664
1,686,746
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(8,265)

1,993,473

2018 S&P 500 2020 30

(13,744)
925
633

(389)

(12,575)

2016 JPX 400 2020 30

(274,907)
35,017
879,174

(8,148)

631,136

2016 TOPIX 2019 30

424,140
(39,409)
(1,883,350)

8,232

(1,490,387)

2016 225 2019 30

(276,680)
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(30,152)
(2,134,978)

4,004

(2,437,806)

116/299



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 S&P 500 * 2019 30

2,445
25
982

16

3,468

* 2018 11 27

2016 JPX 400 2019 30

(82,532)
(41,657)
(1,539,028)

5,767

(1,657,450)

2016 JPX 400
2016 TOPIX 2016 225 2018 S&P 500
2016 TOPIX 2016 225 2018 S&P 500

NAV

NAV

NAV
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2018 S&P 500

2016 225 2018
2020 30
2020 30
6,974,500 38,891
(2,874,500) (26,000)
4,100,000 12,891
6,408,489 19,882
1.56 1.54
2020 30
1,179,700 3,023
647,600 484,000
(1,461,300)
366,000 487,023
8,153,365 10,731,789
22.28 22.04
2020 30
25,415 2,223
499,600 2,618,100
(366,600) (1,437,901)
158,415 1,182,422
185,882 116,296
1.17 0.10
2020 30
1,127,400
(338,000)
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789,400
10,968,999
13.90
2019 30 2016 TOPIX 225 2018
S&P 500 2019 30
2016 JPX 400 2018
2019 30
2016 TOPIX 2019 30
10,624,500 38,891
2,750,000
(6,400,000)
6,974,500 38,891
10,837,077 59,663
1.55 1.53
2016 225 2019 30
109,000 39,423
1,215,000 413,000
(144,300) (449, 400)
1,179,700 3,023
24,715,217 63,545
20.95 21.02
2018 S&P 500 * 2019 30
145,100 2,223
(119, 685)
25,415 2,223
27,996 209
1.10 0.09
* 2018 11 27

2016 JPX 400
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1,127,400
1,127,400
15,406,976
13.67
9.
@ O ©
2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400 2016 225
2018 S&P 500
) 2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400 2016 225
NAV 0.02
2018 S&P 500
NAV
0.02 0.04
)
2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400 2016 225
() NAV 250
NAV 0.07 () NAV
250 500 NAV 0.06
() NAV NAV 0.05
10,000,000
2018 S&P 500
() NAV 250 NAV
0.11 () NAV 250 500
0.10 () NAV
500 NAV 0.09
100,000
©) NAV
0.05
2016 TOPIX 16,540,928 2019 30 20,361,646
11,620,380 2019 30 8,264,100
2016 225 26,809,479 2019 30 30,866,252
17,965,752 2019 30 18,087,202
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2018 S&P 500 364,869 2019 30 63,826
330,303 2019 30 63,826

2016 JPX 400 20,870,148 2019 30
22,359,852 15,314,984 2019 30 10,622,730
10.

2,500
2016 TOPIX 379,955 2019 30 316,638
2019 30
2016 225 379,955 2019 30 316,638
2019 30
2018 S&P 500 8,744 2019 30 7,744
2019 30
2016 JPX 400 379,955 2019 30 316,638
2019 30
11.
2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400 2016 225
() NAV 100
NAV 0.07 () NAV 100
250 NAV 0.06 () NAV
250 500 NAV 0.05 ()
NAV 500 NAV 0.04
720,000
2018 S&P 500
() NAV
100 NAV 0.07 ()
NAV 100 250 NAV

0.06 () NAV 250 500

NAV 0.05 () NAV 500

NAV 0.04

6,000
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2016 TOPIX
9,746,628 10,588,880 2
2016 225
14,661,030 16,417,546
2018 S&P 500
42,608 141,100
2016 JPX 400
10,577,314 12,447,828
12.
2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400
120,000
2018 S&P 500
2016 TOPIX
17,674,688 30,609,634
2016 225
3,645,449 3,066,598 20
2018 S&P 500
115,903 2019
2016 JPX 400
3,871,562 4,043,884 20
13.
225 500
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8,687,343 2019
30 9,263,928

30
019

12,658,352 2019
30 15,008,748

30
2019

168,223
30

2019
42,608

30
2019

10,027,305
30 9,807,072

2019 30

2019

2016 225

NAV 0.01

NAV 0.01

1,000

10,586,872
2019 30

2019
20,645,683

30

3,068,648
30

2019
690,680

30
19

266,441
30

2019
11,813

30 11,813

3,162,031 2019
30 915,089

30
19

JPX 400

TOPIX



2016 JPX

NAV 0.02
0.01
500

500
NAV

)
0.001

NAV

4,150,441

2,897,630

14.

0.0005

2020
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400 2016 225
100,000
2018 S&P 500 NAV
2016 TOPIX () NAV 100
NAV 0.00 () NAV 100
NAV 0.005 () NAV
1000 NAV 0.003 ()
1000 3000 NAV 0.002
NAV 3000 5000 NAV
() NAV 5000
100,000
2018 S&P 500
2016 TOPIX 848,967 2019 30 1,180,191
2019 30
2016 225 3,682,153 2019 30
2019 30
2018 S&P 500 29,986 2019 30 8,878
2019 30
2016 JPX 400 2,832,684 2019 30
2019 30
11
30
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2016 2016 2018 2016
TOPIX 225 S&P 500 JPX 400
2019 97,783 - 152,883
2019 11 465 457 -
2020 64,680 - 626 135,190
2020 176 64,935 -
163,104 65,392 626 288,073
2019 30
2016 2016 2018 2016
TOPIX 225 S&P 500 * JPX 400
2018 156,035 140,161
2018 11 470 18,191
2019 82,554 88 131,611
2019 552 603
239,611 18,794 88 271,772
* 2018 11 27
15.
74
50
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16.
10 11
17.
2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400 2016 225
2019 30 2018 S&P 500
2018 11 27 2019 30
18.
CovID-19 2019 12
CovID-19
19.
20.

2020 30 2020 12 18
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2016 JPX 400

2020 30
97.85% (2019 30 97.69%)
97.85% (2019 30 97.69%)
0.27% (2019 30 0.39%)

6,200 Dentsu Group Inc 15,841 0.14

1,100 Digital Garage Inc 3,773 0.03

8,400 Hakuhodo DY Holdings Inc 10,760 0.10

30,374 0.27
0.13% (2019 30 0.11%)
4,500 IHl Corp 7,011 0.06
4,900 Kawasaki Heavy Industries Ltd 7,595 0.07
14,606 0.13
0.67% (2019 30 0.78%)
36,600 Japan Tobacco Inc 73,255 0.67
73,255 0.67
0.43% (2019 30 0.69%)
10,900 ANA Holdings Inc 26,716 0.24
10,600 Japan Airlines Co Ltd 20,584 0.19
47,300 0.43
(2019 30 0.06%)
3.88% (2019 30 4.67Th)

7,900 Hino Motors Ltd 5,751 0.05
49,700 Honda Motor Co Ltd 136,948 1.25
18,300 Isuzu Motors Ltd 17,811 0.16
18,600 Mazda Motor Corp 12,016 0.11
19,600 Subaru Corp 43,933 0.40
12,500 Suzuki Motor Corp 45,713 0.42
24,200 Toyota Motor Corp 163,640 1.49

425,812 3.88
2.56% (2019 30 2.98%)

5,200 Aisin Seiki Co Ltd 16,328 0.15
18,200 Bridgestone Corp 63,136 0.58

1,300 Daikyonishikawa Corp 625 0.01
13,900 Denso Corp 58,450 0.53

6,000 JTEKT Corp 5,022 0.05

3,800 Koito Manufacturing Co Ltd 16,492 0.15
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7,600 NGK Insulators Ltd 11,309 0.10
4,800 NGK Spark Plug Co Ltd 7,411 0.07
2,300 Nifco Inc 5,288 0.05
4,400 Stanley Electric Co Ltd 11,418 0.10
23,300 Sumitomo Electric Industries Ltd 28,880 0.26
5,700 Sumitomo Rubber Industries Ltd 6,053 0.06
1,200 Topre Corp 1,441 0.01
2,000 Toyoda Gosei Co Ltd 4,484 0.04
1,900 Toyota Boshoku Corp 2,749 0.03
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97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
2.56% (2019 30 2.98%) ( )

5,100 Toyota Industries Corp 29,121 0.27
900 TPR Co Ltd 1,206 0.01
1,500 TS Tech Co Ltd 4,436 0.04
3,600 Yokohama Rubber Co Ltd 5,450 0.05
279,299 2.56

4.35% (2019 30 5.22%)
3,800 AEON Financial Service Co Ltd 4,465 0.04
3,700 Aozora Bank Ltd 6,941 0.06
20,800 Chiba Bank Ltd 10,566 0.10
35,600 Concordia Financial Group Ltd 12,282 0.11
314,000 Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group Inc 132,381 1.20
845,700 Mizuho Financial Group Inc 111,802 1.02
68,300 Resona Holdings Inc 25,121 0.23
20,800 Seven Bank Ltd 6,136 0.06
4,600 Shinsei Bank Ltd 5,971 0.05
41,700 Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group Inc 126,434 1.15
11,800 Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc 35,695 0.33
A77,794 4.35

1.18% (2019 30 1.36%)
13,300 Asahi Group Holdings Ltd 50,221 0.46
26,900 Kirin Holdings Co Ltd 61,184 0.56
4,200 Suntory Beverage & Food Ltd 17,660 0.16
129,065 1.18

1.87% (2019 30 1.78%)

6,200 AGC Inc 19,003 0.17
8,000 Daikin Industries Ltd 138,680 1.26
1,700 Nichias Corp 3,813 0.03
1,200 Rinnai Corp 10,800 0.10
5,900 Sanwa Holdings Corp 5,676 0.05
4,000 Taiheiyo Cement Corp 9,968 0.09
4,500 TOTO Ltd 18,518 0.17
206,458 1.87

4.21% (2019 30 4.50%)
1,800 Aica Kogyo Co Ltd 6,363 0.06
5,700 Air Water Inc 8,670 0.08
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41,000 Asahi Kasei Corp 35,900 0.33
8,100 Daicel Corp 6,747 0.06
2,300 Denka Co Ltd 6,065 0.06
2,600 DIC Corp 7,023 0.06
6,900 Kansai Paint Co Ltd 15,684 0.14
9,700 Kuraray Co Ltd 10,913 0.10

41,300 Mitsubishi Chemical Holdings Corp 25,912 0.24
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97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
4.21% (2019 30 4.50%) ( )

5,700 Mitsubishi Gas Chemical Co Inc 9,291 0.08

5,600 Mitsui Chemicals Inc 12,583 0.11

5,100 Nippon Paint Holdings Co Ltd 39,984 0.36

3,400 Nissan Chemical Corp 18,768 0.17

4,300 Nitto Denko Corp 26,230 0.24

2,300 NOF Corp 8,579 0.08

10,600 Shin-Etsu Chemical Co Ltd 133,507 1.22
4,400 Showa Denko KK 10,630 0.10

45,400 Sumitomo Chemical Co Ltd 14,619 0.13
5,900 Taiyo Nippon Sanso Corp 10,626 0.10

6,600 Tokai Carbon Co Ltd 6,673 0.06

1,800 Tokuyama Corp 4,558 0.04

44,700 Toray Industries Inc 22,685 0.21
9,600 Tosoh Corp 14,112 0.13

3,100 Ube Industries Ltd 5,741 0.05

461,863 4.21

2.72% (2019 30 2._45%)

2,200 Benefit One Inc 4,763 0.04

1,300 GMO Payment Gateway Inc 14,612 0.13

400 JAC Recruitment Co Ltd 457 0.00
1,000 Kanamoto Co Ltd 2,355 0.02
4,500 Nihon M&A Center Inc 21,914 0.20
3,400 Outsourcing Inc 2,312 0.02
3,300 Park24 Co Ltd 6,089 0.06
6,000 Persol Holdings Co Ltd 8,880 0.08

43,200 Recruit Holdings Co Ltd 159,061 1.44
6,400 Secom Co Ltd 60,307 0.55
2,400 Sohgo Security Services Co Ltd 12,048 0.11
1,200 TechnoPro Holdings Inc 7,380 0.07

300,178 2.72
2.33% (2019 30 1.74%)

700 Elecom Co Ltd 3,682 0.03
6,100 Fujitsu Ltd 76,982 0.70
2,800 Itochu Techno-Solutions Corp 11,312 0.10
7,600 NEC Corp 39,292 0.36
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1,900 Nihon Unisys Ltd 6,394 0.06
8,800 Nomura Research Institute Ltd 25,758 0.23

900 NS Solutions Corp 2,651 0.02
16,500 NTT Data Corp 19,784 0.18
2,200 Obic Co Ltd 41,513 0.38
3,400 Otsuka Corp 19,312 0.18
1,400 SCSK Corp 7,336 0.07
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97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
2.33% (2019 30 1.74%) ( )
900 UT Group Co Ltd 2,206 0.02
256,222 2.33
2.96% (2019 30 2.98%)

15,100 Kao Corp 128,954 1.17
1,200 Kose Corp 15,552 0.14
8,200 Lion Corp 21,213 0.19
3,800 Pigeon Corp 15,846 0.14
2,700 Pola Orbis Holdings Inc 5,065 0.05

12,500 Shiseido Co Ltd 85,438 0.78

12,200 Unicharm Corp 53,924 0.49

325,992 2.96
3.63% (2019 30 4.06%)
500 Daiwabo Holdings Co Ltd 3,520 0.03

43,500 ITOCHU Corp 100,985 0.92
2,300 Kanematsu Corp 2,962 0.03

64,700 Marubeni Corp 31,541 0.29

41,000 Mitsubishi Corp 93,070 0.85

53,800 Mitsui & Co Ltd 85,784 0.78
1,000 PALTAC Corp 4,955 0.05

34,300 Sojitz Corp 8,061 0.07

39,200 Sumitomo Corp 48,392 0.44
6,900 Toyota Tsusho Corp 18,830 0.17

398,100 3.63
2.07% (2019 30 2.04%)

49,900 Daiwa Securities Group Inc 22,440 0.20

1,900 Financial Products Group Co Ltd 1,125 0.01
700 Fuyo General Lease Co Ltd 4,193 0.04

17,900 Japan Exchange Group Inc 44,607 0.41
3,500 Matsui Securities Co Ltd 2,905 0.03

32,300 Mebuki Financial Group Inc 8,075 0.07

15,800 Mitsubishi UFJ Lease & Finance Co Ltd 8,058 0.07

109,500 Nomura Holdings Inc 52,823 0.48

16,800 Orient Corp 1,982 0.02

38,800 ORIX Corp 51,546 0.47
6,900 SBI Holdings Inc 16,063 0.15
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1,200 Tokyo Century Corp 6,612 0.06
1,700 Zenkoku Hosho Co Ltd 6,885 0.06

227,314 2.07

0.82% (2019 30 0.91%)

19,300 Chubu Electric Power Co Inc 26,094 0.24
5,000 Electric Power Development Co Ltd 10,224 0.09
23,900 Kansai Electric Power Co Inc 24,976 0.23
13,000 Kyushu Electric Power Co Inc 11,764 0.11
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97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
0.82% (2019 30 0.91%) ( )
15,800 Tohoku Electric Power Co Inc 16,211 0.15
89,269 0.82
0.30% (2019 30 0.27%)
7,700 Brother Industries Ltd 14,953 0.14
5,600 Casio Computer Co Ltd 10,472 0.10
1,900 Furukawa Electric Co Ltd 4,957 0.05
1,500 Nissin Electric Co Ltd 1,572 0.01
31,954 0.30
5.25% (2019 30  4.70%)
5,600 Alps Alpine Co Ltd 7,728 0.07
4,000 Azbil Corp 13,140 0.12
1,700 Fujitsu General Ltd 3,752 0.03
1,075 Hirose Electric Co Ltd 12,707 0.12
1,200 Horiba Ltd 6,816 0.06
12,600 Hoya Corp 129,276 1.17
8,900 Kyocera Corp 52,199 0.48
11,700 Minebea Mitsumi Inc 22,850 0.21
18,500 Murata Manufacturing Co Ltd 116,846 1.06
15,200 Nidec Corp 109,379 1.00
5,700 Omron Corp 41,154 0.38
1,100 SCREEN Holdings Co Ltd 5,533 0.05
2,800 Taiyo Yuden Co Ltd 9,366 0.09
3,000 TDK Corp 32,039 0.29
1,100 Tokyo Seimitsu Co Ltd 3,784 0.03
5,800 Yokogawa Electric Corp 9,744 0.09
576,313 5.25
1.35% (2019 30 1.41%)

3,000 COMSYS Holdings Corp 9,555 0.09
5,100 Hazama Ando Corp 3,177 0.03
2,000 Japan Airport Terminal Co Ltd 9,180 0.08
15,500 Kajima Corp 19,902 0.18
900 Kumagai Gumi Co Ltd 2,322 0.02
3,000 Kyowa Exeo Corp 7,725 0.07
1,400 Kyudenko Corp 4,452 0.04
4,900 Maeda Corp 4,023 0.04
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700 Meitec Corp 3,633 0.03
1,600 Nippo Corp 4,355 0.04
1,500 Nishimatsu Construction Co Ltd 3,215 0.03

19,800 Obayashi Corp 19,958 0.18
7,800 Penta-Ocean Construction Co Ltd 4,516 0.04
20,100 Shimizu Corp 17,789 0.16
4,760 Sumitomo Mitsui Construction Co Ltd 2,228 0.02

135/299



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
1.35% (2019 30 1.41%) ( )

6,600 Taisei Corp 25,872 0.24
8,200 Toda Corp 5,699 0.05
2,500 Tokyu Construction Co Ltd 1,395 0.01
148,996 1.35

0.96% (2019 30 1.02%)
6,400 Oriental Land Co Ltd 91,136 0.83
3,700 Toho Co Ltd 14,412 0.13
105,548 0.96

2.99% (2019 30 3.18%)
14,000 Ajinomoto Co Inc 25,088 0.23
600 Ariake Japan Co Ltd 4,104 0.04
2,900 Calbee Inc 8,651 0.08
1,100 Create SD Holdings Co Ltd 3,685 0.03
1,900 Ezaki Glico Co Ltd 9,766 0.09
3,500 Kewpie Corp 7,123 0.06
4,600 Kikkoman Corp 23,874 0.22
2,100 Kobe Bussan Co Ltd 12,768 0.12
1,200 Maruha Nichiro Corp 2,648 0.02
4,200 MEIJI Holdings Co Ltd 36,036 0.33
1,500 Morinaga & Co Ltd 6,278 0.06
2,400 NH Foods Ltd 10,380 0.09
3,000 Nichirei Corp 9,405 0.09
8,600 Nippon Suisan Kaisha Ltd 4,025 0.04
2,700 Nissin Foods Holdings Co Ltd 25,785 0.24
24,300 Seven & i Holdings Co Ltd 85,536 0.77
3,300 Toyo Suisan Kaisha Ltd 19,899 0.18
4,400 Yakult Honsha Co Ltd 27,940 0.25
700 Yaoko Co Ltd 5,390 0.05
328,381 2.99

0.18% (2019 30 0.21%)

25,800 0ji Holdings Corp 12,926 0.12
5,000 Sumitomo Forestry Co Ltd 6,765 0.06
19,691 0.18

0.52% (2019 30 0.60%)
12,300 Osaka Gas Co Ltd 26,174 0.24
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31,218 0.28
57,392 0.52

0.65%)
6,872 0.06
20,872 0.19
5,097 0.05
11,187 0.10
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97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
0.73% (2019 30 0.65%) ( )

8,200 Makita Corp 32,103 0.29
2,900 0SG Corp 4,785 0.04
80,916 0.73

2.18% (2019 30 1.65%)
7,100 Asahi Intecc Co Ltd 21,762 0.20
1,900 Japan Lifeline Co Ltd 2,704 0.02
2,600 Nihon Kohden Corp 9,425 0.09

34,900 Olympus Corp 72,435 0.66
7,500 Shimadzu Corp 21,510 0.20
4,500 Sysmex Corp 37,035 0.34

17,900 Terumo Corp 73,050 0.67

237,921 2.18

0.19% (2019 30 0.05%)
800 Ain Holdings Inc 5,648 0.05
3,200 PeptiDream Inc 15,808 0.14
21,456 0.19

1.28% (2019 30 1.29%)

19,600 Daiwa House Industry Co Ltd 49,823 0.45
7,700 Haseko Corp 10,457 0.10
5,200 lida Group Holdings Co Ltd 8,585 0.08
1,800 Open House Co Ltd 6,642 0.06

13,200 Sekisui Chemical Co Ltd 20,354 0.19

21,500 Sekisui House Ltd 44,129 0.40

139,990 1.28

2.41% (2019 30 2.33%)
72,100 Panasonic Corp 67,745 0.62
26,700 Sony Corp 197,153 1.79
264,898 2.41
0.03% (2019 30 0.04%)
1,000 Pilot Corp 3,275 0.03
3,275 0.03
2.47% (2019 30 2.82%)

35,200 Dai-ichi Life Holdings Inc 45,162 0.41

16,300 MS&AD Insurance Group Holdings Inc 48,264 0.44

11,700 Sompo Holdings Inc 43,372 0.40
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5,100 Sony Financial Holdings Inc 13,235 0.12
18,600 T&D Holdings Inc 17,131 0.16
22,000 Tokio Marine Holdings Inc 103,356 0.94

270,520 2.47

2.00% (2019 30 1.29%)
3,700 CyberAgent Inc 19,573 0.18
900 Dip Corp 1,963 0.02
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97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
2.00% (2019 30 1.29%) ( )

1,100 En-japan Inc 2,922 0.03

4,500 Kakaku.com Inc 12,280 0.11
13,300 M3 Inc 60,981 0.56

4,400 MonotaRO Co Ltd 19,008 0.17
28,100 Rakuten Inc 26,639 0.24

1,900 SMS Co Ltd 4,592 0.04

2,700 Trend Micro Inc 16,254 0.15
85,000 Z Holdings Corp 44,710 0.41

4,300 Z0Z0 Inc 10,303 0.09

219,225 2.00
0.47% (2019 30 0.81%)

6,700 Hitachi Metals Ltd 8,596 0.08
16,900 JFE Holdings Inc 13,047 0.12
27,900 Nippon Steel Corp 28,277 0.26

400 Nippon Steel Trading Corp 1,358 0.01
51,278 0.47
0.79% (2019 30 0.77%)

1,200 Daiichikosho Co Ltd 3,870 0.04

2,400 Shimano Inc 49,800 0.45

3,700 Yamaha Corp 18,759 0.17

8,200 Yamaha Motor Co Ltd 13,842 0.13

86,271 0.79
0.04% (2019 30 0.04%)
2,800 Resorttrust Inc 3,906 0.04
3,906 0.04
5.26% (2019 30 4_96%)

3,200 Daifuku Co Ltd 30,144 0.27

6,000 FANUC Corp 115,560 1.05

1,300 Harmonic Drive Systems Inc 7,683 0.07

4,500 Keyence Corp 202,635 1.85
33,500 Kubota Corp 53,868 0.49

3,700 Nabtesco Corp 12,284 0.11

400 Obara Group Inc 1,308 0.01

2,000 SNMC Corp 110,360 1.01

3,600 Sumitomo Heavy Industries Ltd 8,442 0.08
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3,700 THK Co Ltd 9,857 0.09
6,800 Yaskawa Electric Corp 25,330 0.23
577,471 5.26

2.67% (2019 30 3.03%)
2,500 Hitachi Construction Machinery Co Ltd 7,450 0.07
30,300 Hitachi Ltd 103,111 0.94
28,600 Komatsu Ltd 63,020 0.57
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97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
2.67% (2019 30 3.03%) ( )
63,100 Mitsubishi Electric Corp 88,308 0.81
10,600 Mitsubishi Heavy Industries Ltd 26,956 0.25
600 Modec Inc 916 0.01
1,100 Takeuchi Manufacturing Co Ltd 1,969 0.02
291,730 2.67
0.06% (2019 30 0.08%)
5,200 Nippon Television Holdings Inc 6,063 0.06
6,063 0.06
0.28% (2019 30 0.33%)
7,800 MISUMI Group Inc 21,013 0.19
11,900 NSK Ltd 9,508 0.09
30,521 0.28
0.30% (2019 30 0.44%)
1,600 Dowa Holdings Co Ltd 5,232 0.05
15,800 Nippon Light Metal Holdings Co Ltd 2,970 0.03
8,000 Sumitomo Metal Mining Co Ltd 24,072 0.22
32,274 0.30
0.19% (2019 30 0.05%)
5,800 JSR Corp 12,064 0.11
9,600 Nikon Corp 8,659 0.08
20,723 0.19
0.83% (2019 30 1.21%)
34,000 Canon Inc 72,573 0.66
13,800 Konica Minolta Inc 5,134 0.05
7,800 Seiko Epson Corp 9,617 0.09
800 Toshiba TEC Corp 3,296 0.03
90,620 0.83
0.72% (2019 30 0.99%)
1,800 Cosmo Energy Holdings Co Ltd 2,826 0.03
94,900 ENEOS Holdings Inc 36,252 0.33
7,000 Idemitsu Kosan Co Ltd 16,009 0.15
34,400 Inpex Corp 22,941 0.21
78,028 0.72
8.05% (2019 30 6.70%)
6,900 Alfresa Holdings Corp 15,532 0.14
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54,700 Astellas Pharma Inc 98,433 0.90
19,800 Chugai Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 114,147 1.04
18,100 Daiichi Sankyo Co Ltd 159,388 1.44
7,500 Eisai Co Ltd 64,095 0.58
1,700 Hisamitsu Pharmaceutical Co Inc 9,877 0.09
1,100 Kaken Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 6,061 0.06
1,800 Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 17,064 0.16

143/299



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
8.05% (2019 30 6.70%) ( )
6,400 Kyowa Kirin Co Ltd 18,106 0.17
6,700 Medipal Holdings Corp 13,909 0.13
1,700 Nippon Shinyaku Co Ltd 14,909 0.14
14,500 Ono Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 45,487 0.41
12,000 Otsuka Holdings Co Ltd 56,388 0.51
11,800 Santen Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 23,399 0.21
1,300 Sawai Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 7,202 0.07
8,000 Shionogi & Co Ltd 54,000 0.49
1,000 Ship Healthcare Holdings Inc 4,485 0.04
4,700 Sumitomo Dainippon Pharma Co Ltd 7,003 0.06
40,300 Takeda Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 155,074 1.41
884,559 8.05
0.03% (2019 30 )
3,300 TOKAI Holdings Corp 3,280 0.03
3,280 0.03
2.24% (2019 30 2.89%)
3,100 Aeon Mall Co Ltd 4,433 0.04
2,200 Daito Trust Construction Co Ltd 21,800 0.20
13,000 Hulic Co Ltd 13,156 0.12
7,900 Ichigo Inc 2,133 0.02
43,600 Mitsubishi Estate Co Ltd 69,869 0.64
30,700 Mitsui Fudosan Co Ltd 58,622 0.53
3,800 Nomura Real Estate Holdings Inc 7,600 0.07
1,000 Pressance Corp 1,185 0.01
3,300 Relo Group Inc 6,692 0.06
800 Starts Corp Inc 1,766 0.02
14,000 Sumitomo Realty & Development Co Ltd 41,482 0.38
6,600 Tokyo Tatemono Co Ltd 8,158 0.07
16,900 Tokyu Fudosan Holdings Corp 8,518 0.08
245,414 2.24
3.93% (2019 30 2.81%)
1,000 ABC-Mart Inc 6,310 0.06
23,900 Aeon Co Ltd 59,870 0.55
3,700 Bic Camera Inc 4,225 0.04
600 Cosmos Pharmaceutical Corp 9,924 0.09
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5,000 FamilyMart Co Ltd 9,245 0.08

800 Fast Retailing Co Ltd 49,360 0.45
1,100 Goldwin Inc 7,744 0.07
1,400 Iwatani Corp 5,278 0.05
1,300 Izumi Co Ltd 4,433 0.04
7,400 J Front Retailing Co Ltd 5,313 0.05
1,400 KOMEDA Holdings Co Ltd 2,561 0.02
6,000 K"s Holdings Corp 8,808 0.08
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97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
3.93% (2019 30 2.81%) ( )

500 Kusuri no Aoki Holdings Co Ltd 4,230 0.04
1,600 Lawson Inc 8,656 0.08
5,700 Marui Group Co Ltd 11,092 0.10
2,600 Matsumotokiyoshi Holdings Co Ltd 10,179 0.09
2,600 McDonald*s Holdings Co Japan Ltd 15,132 0.14
2,700 Nitori Holdings Co Ltd 57,038 0.52
1,100 Nojima Corp 2,993 0.03

13,700 Pan Pacific International Holdings Corp 32,455 0.30
8,300 Ryohin Keikaku Co Ltd 12,658 0.12
1,500 Seria Co Ltd 5,753 0.05

700 Shimamura Co Ltd 5,110 0.05
7,000 Skylark Holdings Co Ltd 11,977 0.11
1,200 Sugi Holdings Co Ltd 8,760 0.08
2,300 Sundrug Co Ltd 8,211 0.07
1,400 Tsuruha Holdings Inc 20,790 0.19

700 United Arrows Ltd 1,275 0.01
6,700 USS Co Ltd 11,544 0.11
1,900 Welcia Holdings Co Ltd 16,511 0.15

600 Workman Co Ltd 5,681 0.05
3,000 Zensho Holdings Co Ltd 6,528 0.06

429,644 3.93
1.97% (2019 30 1.00%)

4,700 Advantest Corp 28,764 0.26
4,500 Hamamatsu Photonics KK 21,015 0.19
2,800 Lasertec Corp 28,448 0.26
30,200 Renesas Electronics Corp 16,640 0.15
7,400 SUMCO Corp 12,203 0.11
4,000 Tokyo Electron Ltd 105,760 0.96
1,200 Ulvac Inc 3,732 0.03
300 V Technology Co Ltd 1,097 0.01
217,659 1.97

1.08% (2019 30 0.80%)

200 Akatsuki Inc 765 0.01
2,900 Capcom Co Ltd 11,368 0.10
2,000 COLOPL Inc 1,966 0.02
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2,700 DeNA Co Ltd 3,629 0.03
1,550 GungHo Online Entertainment Inc 2,979 0.03
2,200 Konami Holdings Corp 7,898 0.07
1,500 Mixi Inc 2,854 0.03
17,300 Nexon Co Ltd 42,160 0.38
1,300 Oracle Corp Japan 16,536 0.15
2,600 Square Enix Holdings Co Ltd 14,144 0.13
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97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
97.85% (2019 30 97.69%) ( )
1.08% (2019 30 0.80%) ( )
6,200 TIS Inc 14,099 0.13
118,398 1.08
5.57% (2019 30 5.78%)

600 Hikari Tsushin Inc 14,730 0.13
45,400 KDDI Corp 146,824 1.35
63,000 Nippon Telegraph & Telephone Corp 158,477 1.44
44,300 NTT DoCoMo Inc 127,673 1.16
29,700 SoftBank Group Corp 161,865 1.48

600 T-Gaia Corp 1,219 0.01

610,788 5.57

0.08% (2019 30 )
5,000 Teijin Ltd 8,570 0.08
8,570 0.08
2.07% (2019 30 1.59%)
6,500 Bandai Namco Holdings Inc 36,836 0.34
3,900 Nintendo Co Ltd 187,239 1.71
2,800 Tomy Co Ltd 2,380 0.02
226,455 2.07
4._30% (2019 30 5.18%)

5,200 Central Japan Railway Co 86,788 0.79
11,100 East Japan Railway Co 82,961 0.76
8,000 Hankyu Hanshin Holdings Inc 29,160 0.27
1,100 Hitachi Transport System Ltd 3,168 0.03
3,500 Keihan Holdings Co Ltd 16,818 0.15
3,300 Keio Corp 20,328 0.19
4,400 Keisei Electric Railway Co Ltd 14,850 0.14
6,000 Kintetsu Group Holdings Co Ltd 29,070 0.27
6,500 Nagoya Railroad Co Ltd 19,793 0.18
2,100 Nippon Express Co Ltd 11,718 0.11
9,400 Odakyu Electric Railway Co Ltd 24,919 0.23
1,700 Sankyu Inc 6,885 0.06
8,400 Seibu Holdings Inc 9,836 0.09
2,700 Sotetsu Holdings Inc 7,771 0.07
6,600 Tobu Railway Co Ltd 23,529 0.21
15,900 Tokyu Corp 24,120 0.22
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33,858 0.31
24,465 0.22
470,037 4.30
10,733,066 97.85
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(0.07)% (2019 30  0.00%)

166 14,523 JPN-K400 Index Futures September 2020 (7,961) (0.07)
(7,961) (0.07)

10,725,105 97.78

156,465 1.43

97,318 0.89

(9,889) (0.10)

10,968,999 100.00
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Ag at 30 line 2020
Series 2008 TOPDL Series 2018 Nildoed 225 Fund Serles 2018 SEP 500
Fumd Fund
30 June 2020 230 June 2020 30 June 2020
Astots Nates PYFOD0 P00 USD'00a
Fimandal assets at fair valee through
profit or loss 4 6,197,618 18,561,403 253,560
Iinterest receivable . . 1
[Dividiends receivable L] 28,540 54
drnourts due from brokers &GS - N
Cash and cash equivalents 145,530 205550 T.0Ea
Cash at brokers 124,472 1B5.000 241
Other receivables 7068 3,610 18
Total assets 6,494,271 18,962 812 303,754
Liabiities
[Finandal liabilties at fair valse through
prafit or loas 4 8,718) {8.480) fea1)
Management fees payable £l (11,8200 [17,968) (330)
‘Withholding tax payable i1,520) (4,127) {111)
Custodian fees payable 1 [30,E20) (3,067) (11E)
Administration fees payable 1 [10,589) [16,41%) (141)
Legal and professional fees payable 1,271 {1,852] {300
Ausdit foes payable {12 {8ag) .
Amauts due to brokers . [26.514) -
Other payables 862) i1,238) {167)
Tatal liabilitie 185,300) (77,658 1,578}
Net assets attributable to holders of redezmable units 6,428,371 18,805,154 302,178

T arcompanying rates sre an intagral part of theo feancial salemant.
11
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION [continued)
Ag at 20 June 2020

EDINETOOOO

OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Sories H016 IPX -
Miltked 400 Fund
30 June 2020
Azspis Motes Loyl
Fimandal assets at fair valee through profit or loss 4 10,753 068
\Diwidiends recevvable 19,154
Apnounts duse from brokers 8BTS
Cash and cash equivalents 156,485
Cash at brokers 97,318
Other receivables 1,865
Total assets 11,006,647
Liabilitles
[Finandial liabilties at fair vahse through profit or loss 4 [7o61)
Management fees payable ] {15,315}
‘Withholding tax payakbile [2933)
Custodian fees payable 1z [4.044)
Administration fees payable 11 {1448}
LLegal and professional fees payabde [2037)
Ausdit fees payable 31}
Other payables [za79)
Total liabilities {47,548)
Total Equity 10,968,999

Thie financial statements were approved and authonsed for issue by the Trustes and the Directors of the Manager on 12 December 2020,

fo e
"5:"»’7‘%._. i%fﬁlw}

mmﬁ\bﬁ [Cayman)) Limited as Trusbes

JP. Bdongan Mansart & Limited as g
Tem A W raries Irgagral part of thaw fizancial statements.
12

PassibA Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION [sontinused)
AR e 30 fome 2020

Sewies BOLE X -

kel 600 Fund

¥ June 2020

Aoty Notes 000
Fingncial arset o8 Falr vl tRrough pradit of kds L] 10,733,056
Tividenads recetvabie 19,154
Aevourns due from beoiers REH
Caih ind cash poisvalews i v
Carh o Ergleri 57,318
Caher necebvabibes . - 1%
Tornl assars o Mmem
Liabadities
Finansl Babdases ot fer valoe §hrgugh proftt o loss 4 {T.9EL)
Menagemery heet pryable 5 {15335}
Weithhoiding tex pyabie {za3)
Cuntodlan e payilile 12 (404}
Admenibration fees payele EH 1448,
Lisgad and professional fees pavable [roam)
At feei payabie [=1)
G gyl — (AT
Toad liabidities — A
Tatad Equity 10,558,559
The financial wahe ap o wet guth d T Haue by the Trustee and tha of tha i on 18 b B OO
lteruust Dorpovate Senvioes [Cayman] limfied @ Trintes 1P, Mdorgan iMaan as

12
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PassiM Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Ag at 20 june 2019
Series 2008 TOPIK Fund Series 2006 Mikioel ZFS5 Fund Series 2018 S&P 500
Fund
30 bune 2019 20 June 2019 30 June 2009
Assets Mates P00 P00 USD'o0d
Finandal assets at fair valee through
profit or loss 4 10,566,401 14,341,537 27,148
linterest receivable . - i |
|Dewidends recelvablie 16371 38,537 &0
Apnonants duss from brokers 15954 - N
Cash and cash squivalents 285,029 280,564 oT
Cash at brokers S0 540 168 T35 185
ther receivables 1,535 1,418 .
Total assets 10,948,730 24,825,492 28,408
Liabilities
Finandal biabilties at fair vahse through
profit or loss 4 i1,231) - .
Management fees payabie ] (8,264 (18,087) (B4
Withholding tax payabile {2.487) {5.611) {23
Custodian fees payabie 1 [30, B4 [ ] 1z
Administration fees payable 1 {9, 264) (15,00%) 143)
Legal and professional fees payable i2,351) {3,190] 1%
Husdit fees payable |78s) {B53) =)
Amnounts due o brokers i3,148) -
Sott up fees peyable i1,179) (1,280) .
Other payables |2, 60%) {3,200) {33)
Total liabilities [=1,990] [47,730] {202)
et assets attributable to holkd P ble units 247

*This Sub-Fund lsurched an I7 Mesember 1018

Thm scoorpanying notes sre an ingagral part of thens fizsncal salemants.
13
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PFOSITION [continued)
Ag at 20 June 2015
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Series 2016 IPX -
Mk 400 Fund
3 June 2019
Azspts Motes 000
Fimandal assets at fair valee through profit or loss 4 18 051 284
Desidends recevable 25,400
Apnounts duse from brokers 25,638
Cash and cash equivalents 286,138
Cash at brokers 62,300
Other receivables 1,571
Total assets 15,452,331
Liabilizies
Mdanagement fees payable ] {10, 6E3)
‘Withholding tax payable [3.850)
Custodian fees payable 1z [915)
Administration fees payable 11 [9.807)
Legal and professional fees payabde [3.E26)
Musdit fees payable (718}
Arnouts due ko brokers (6. 30a)
Zet up fees payable [£E12)
Other payables 7.257)
Total liabilities |45,355)
Total Equity 15,406,978
Thw sccorpanying notes ane an Inbagral part of thas flzanchsl statemants.
14
PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial pear from 1 fuly 2009 to 30 june 2020
Series 2016 TOPIX Series 2006 Mikkel Series 2018 SEP 500
[Fund 225 Fund Fund
30 June 2000 20 June 2020 30 June 2020
Income Notes Y000 P00 USD000
et gain{loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or lass 7 424,358 1993473 {12575}
Dividend income 188,111 IBEE97 502
Interest {loss) . . i
Total net income/{lass) 612 468 2362170 (8,573}
[Expensss
Management foes a {18541 [26,804) (365}
Custodian fees 12 {10587 (3,065) [266)
Administration fees 11 (8587 [12,858) [168)
Legal and professional fees [2.533) (2.533) {14}
Set up foes 84} . i)
At foes (683 {643) [
License fess 13 120 ] (3,682 (30
Trustes fees 10 (2804 {380 [&:]]
(Other expenses [1.082) {3.111) [143)
Total operating experses {41,436) (52,935) (1,011}
Fimance cost:
Distribartion to Unithalders 14 {163,104y [&5,352) [E26)
ProfitfiLess) before tax 407,928 2243843 (8,516}
‘Withholding tax {28 504) [56,468) {1,676)
Met gaing{loss) attributable to holders of redesmable
participating units 379,122 2187377 {10,192}

Thm scoorpanying notes sre an ingagral part of thens fizsncal salemants.
15
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {continued)
For the financial pear from 1 July 2019 ta 30 June 2020

Thisra are 70 galns or losees s th financial year othar than thoda dealt with in the Statemsnt of Comprebansie Inoome amd sccondingly no statemant of total recognised
@ains and losses has Beee prasented

&1 rasults are from continuing operations.

Thw aczarparying rotes sre an nbagral part of the fzancal dalemant.
16
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {continued)
For the finaneial jear from 1 Tuly 2019 ta 30 june 3020

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Serles 2016 WP -
Mikkel 200 Fund
a0 June 2020
Income Nates il
et gain on finandal assets and labilities at fair value through
profitor loss 7 £31,138
Disidend income 31X 408
Total net gain 954,542
Expenses
Management fees L {0,870}
Custodian fees 12 13,162
Administration fees 11 {10,027}
Legal and professional fees {2,541}
Husdit fees {ea3}
License fess 13 {2,553
Trustes fees 10 {380}
Other expenses {1,347)
Total operating experses (41,853
Profit before tax 512,689
‘Withholding tax (449,530}
Met gain attributable to halders of equity units 263,158
Thara are no gains o ksses in tha financial year othar than thosa dealt with in thi Stabesant of Comgrabansive INComa and Wly of hotal recog
@ains and losses has bees prasenied
A rasults are from conbisuing operations.
Thum sccorpanying notes sre an ingagral part of thess fi=sncal satemants.
17
PassiM Trust
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial pear/period from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2009
Series 2016 TOPIX Series 2006 Mikkel Series 2018 SEP 500
[Fund 225 Fund Fuand*
30 June 2009 20 June 2019 30 June 2009
Income Notes Y000 P00 USD000
et {loss)gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or lass 7 11,480,387) {2,437 80€) R
Disidend income 325,250 387,610 g17
Tatal net [lazz] fincame {1.165,137) {2.050,198) 3,088
Expenses
Management fpes ] {20,362) [20,86E) B4y
Custodian fees 12 {17,675) (3,B45) {12)
Administration fees 11 [2,747) [14,861) (43
Legal and professional fees [2.528) (2,522) 18y
St up fees (274) j402) ™
Husdit fees (F21) {721) ]
License feas 13 [1,180) (4,150) 9
Trustes fees 10 (31 [EN b (]
Other expenses [1,787) {2.715) (i
Tatal aperating experses (54591 [60,00) 1186}
Fimance cost:
IDistribartion to Unithalders 14 {238.611) [15,754) (8)
(Lass)/Profit before tax {1,458, 339) (2,128 935) 3
Withholding tax {43,804) [58,362) i151)
Met [kass) /gain attributabls to holders of redesmabile
participating unkts 1,508, 143) {218,387 3,560

*Thiy Subs-fund leurchad on I7 Mosember 018

Thm scoorpanying notes sre an ingagral part of thens fizsncal salemants.
1&
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {continued)
For the financial pear/pericd from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019

Thira aee na gaing or losses in the financial yearn/pariod othar than tese dealt with in the Statesant of Comprebansie Inoome and sccordingly no statament of botal
recognised gains amd lomes has baan presanbad.

Al rasults are from coatisuing operations.

Thw aczarparying rotes sre an nbagral part of the fzancal dalemant.
19
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {continued)
For the finaneial jear from 1 July 2018 ta 30 june 3019

Series 2016 IPX -
Nikiei 400 Fund
30 June 2019
Incamie Motes IRV 000
et {loss) on financial assets and liabilites at fair value through
profit or loss ¥ {1,657 450y
IDesidend income 388 624
Total net [loss) [1,268,826)
[Expenes
anagement fees ] {22, 3504
Custodian fees 12 [3872)
Administration fees 11 {10,577}
Legal and professional fees [2528)
Lot up fees 14}
Husdit fees [F21)
Licerse fees 13 (2248
Trustes fees i) (317}
Other expenses [1.80F)
Total operating experses [LE=T]
|Loss) before tax: (1,313,520}
‘Withholding tax {549,535)
Met [kass) attributable to holders of equity units [1,373,055)

Thisra are no gabng o keeses in tha Snancial year othar tan theaa dealt with in the Stabemant of Comgprabansive Incoms aed sceordingly mo statament of total recogeised
@ains and lesses has Beer prasented
&l rasults are from contisuing aperationa.

Thw accomparying rotes sne an insagral part of tha fzandsl salemanti.
20

PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO REDEEMING PARTICIPATING UNITHOUDERS
For the finaneial year from 1 July 2019 ta 30 June 2020

Sewries 2016 TOPIX Series 2006 Mikkel 225 Serles 2018 SEP 500
Fund Fund Fund
20 June 2020 30 Jure 2020 30 Jure 2020
Motes P00 AP 00D UsSD 000
Total assets attributable to redeeming participating
undtholders at beginming of the financial year 10,896,740 24,778,762 28,206
[Procesds from the issue of redesmable particpating
units . 25473054 224,164
Payment on the: redemption of redeemable
participating units {4,247 451) {33, 554,029)
et |decreasefinorease resultng from unit
ftransactians {4,247 451) [8.080,925) 224 164
et increass{decrease) for the finandal year in net
assets attributable to unitholders from operations
379,122 2,187.377 [10,192)
Total assets attributable to redeeming participating
undtholders at end of the finandal year 6428371 18,885 154 ap2.178

Thm scoorpanying notes sre an ingagral part of thens fizsncal salemants.
21
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the financial pear from 1 July 2019 ta 30 June 2020

Motes
Total equity at beginning of the financial year

[Proceeds from the issse of redesmable particdpating
units

Payment on the redemption of redesmable

participabing units
et |decrese) resulting from unit transactions

IDéstribation to Unithalders 4

Met increase for the finandal year in net assets
attributable to unitholders fnom operations

Total equity at end of the financlal year

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
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Series 2016 0PX -
Mkl 400 Fund
30 June 2030

15,406,976

(8,003,063

f2e,073)

863,158

Thw aczarparying rotes sre an nbagral part of the fzancal dalemant.

2z
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO REDEEMING PARTICIPATING UNITHOLDERS {continued)
For the finaneial jear/period from 1 fuly 2018 ta 30 June 2019

Series 2018 TOPX Series 2008 Nikkel 225 Serles 2018 SEP 500
Fund Fund Fund*
30 buniz 2019 30 Jume 2019 30 Jume 2019
Motes APYO00 AR 000 USD000
Total assets attributable to redeeming participating
undtholders at beginming of the financial year 18,487,715 3,229,927 .
[Procesds from the issue of redesmable particpating
units 5,003,607 36,836,162 14 56ak

[Payment on the redemption of redeemable
participabing units {12,095, 435) {13,098,570)
et |decreasefincrease resultng from unit
ftransactions

B, 01,83 23.mnam 24 848
Met {decreasefinorease for the finandal year in net
assets attributable to unitholders from operations 11,5009,143) [£,188,357} 3,560
Total assets attributable to redeeming participating
undtholders at end of the finandal year/jperiod 10,896,740 24,778,762 28 206
*This Sub-Fund leurchad on I7 Mesembaer JI2E
Thw sccorpanying notes ane an Inbagral part of thas flzanchsl statemants.
23
PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY [continued)
For the financial pear from 1 fuly 2008 to 30 june 2019
Series 2016 IPX -
Mk 300 Fund
30 June 2019
Motes WEY000
Total equity at beginning of the financial year 17,051, 803
[Proceeds from the issse of redesmable particpating
units
[Payment on the: redemption of redeemabde
participating units
et increase resslting from wnit transactions .
IDistribation to Unithalders 4 {271,772}
et {decrease) for the finandal year in net assets
attributable to unitholders fnom operations: {1,373 055)
Total equity at end of the financlal year 15,406,976

Thm scoorpanying notes sre an ingagral part of thens fizsncal salemants.
24
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the finaneial pear from 1 July 2019 ta 30 june 3020

Series 2016 TOPI Series 2016 Mikkel 225 Series POLE SEF 500
Fund Fund Fuand
30 June 2020 30 Jume 2020 30 hune 2020
JFY 000 P00 LISDrD00
Caas h (s Troin oparatiog sthities
Oparating gain/flcss) for tha finasdal year 379,122 2,187,377 10,152}
Adjustments Tor:
Dbstribution paid to Unithokdars 153, 004 55,392 625
Dividand incoma (1E5,111) {3E8,697) (5.703)
Inbareat flas) . . 7
Withhalding tax on dividand nocess 5,804 55,465 LETE
Oparating gain[loss] before working capital chasgis 362,919 1,540,538 {13,585}
Decraada;|incrasa) in financial assats at fair vadus through profin or bas 4,368,783 5,780,134 265,711y
Icraase in financial liabilsas at fair valua ough profitor loss 7484 5,490 11
Decraada/|incraada) in receivables 7767 [2.152) 3
Increase in payabas 5426 43 2]
{incraasa)fdecraasa in Cah o benkar {33,933 1,335 (2,E37)
Mat eash [ 4,738,447 7,748,744 {zE1,158)
Incom e paid {25:804) (56,445} {1,678
Dividands receivad 154,453 378,385 5309
Intaret flds) - - m
Mat eash [ (R it 4,905,096 BATL 663 (277.842)
Cash Tl [used injypeovided by linancing activities
Frocedds e diue of redaamabke participating anits . 25,473,054 284,164
Fay a af g units (4,847, &3 (33,554,039} -
Dbtribution paid to Unithokdars 153,104) (55,3592 7]
Mt cash foutflow]finMow from Minancing aothitks 5,000, 595) §E.186,377) 283,538
Mat change s cash and casb sgubabints (105,439} 74,718} 5,006
Cagh and msh at tha begineing of aar 55,009 IE0,564 973
Cash and cash equivubints at the end of the fsancal year 149,530 205,850 7,065

Thm acoorpanying rates sne an infagral part of thas fissncial datements.

5
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS continued)
For the financial pear from 1 July 2019 ta 30 June 2020
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L Mows froan oparating acthities
Diperating gaim for tha inancil yaar

st ments T
Dividnd incame
Withclding tax e dividand income

Dperating i bafors working tagital chasges

Dacrease in fisancial assets at fair valss threegh preolit or los
Incraaa i finsecisl labfites ot fair vabes throagh prolit or las
Dacrease in receivablis

[Dasvaasa) i payables

[Increase] in cash ab Broker

Mt g prondded by eperation

Income tax paid
Dividends recaboad

Mt ca providod by eparating sivities

Casth Mo fused In} by Tinascing activitias
Precands from issus of Units 1o squity hokdars
Payments from redampticn of wnits from agquity holders
Distribrution paid 1o Ueitholdars

Mt cash putilom Team finandng actvities

Mt chasge in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Cash ayuvakints ot the baginning of fisancial year
Coah and cash squivaloms ot th sl ol tha Ninasial yoa

Serkes 2018 1PK -
Milickced 400 Fund
30 June 2020

863,159

[323.408)

7.961
16,563

|35,017)
4,391,340

|aa.5300
329,552
5171 452

[aza.578)
86,139

Thw accomparying rotes sne an insagral part of tha fizandal falemants.

PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS [continued)

For the finansial pear/peried from 1 fuly 2018 ta 30 June 2019

Cash T Trom opetaling etivitkes

Oparating flozs)fgaie for the inascal yar
Bdjistmsnts T

Dbribution pald bo Unithobdars

Dividend incoma

‘Withholfing tax on dividesd s

Diprating boisgaln before working casital changes

Decraaca|inorasaa) in fnancial axsats ot Talr velus through profit or las

| Duecraase) in feancial liabilis at tair valua theough peofit of ks
Decrase/ Tincrease) in recokable

| Dacrasen T RC e i pargakdias

Decraada/|incraada) in cash at broker

Mt csh provided by {ued in) oparation

Incomi Tax pakd
Dividands receivad

Mot cash provided byfused in) oparating activities

Cash Nows |used in |/ srovidod by Tinasdng activithes

Froceads i [= T F F W sl
[Pary L af g units
Disribution paid to Unithobksars

Mat cash (outfow]finfow Trem finantieg athitis.

Mat changa in cash and cash equivakints

Cash and cash aquivalents at tha begineing of inancial yaar

Cash and cash pguivabints at the end of the feanclal year ' period

#This Sub-f und lsurched on I7 Mossmber I8

Thm scoorpanying notes sre an ingagral part of thens fizsncal stalemants.

26

Saries 2006 Nikked 225

Saries DOLE SEF SO0

Fund Fund Fund®
30 e 2019 30 Jun 2019 30 Jume 2019
P00 P00 1L ]
11,509,143} 12.188.357] 3,580
T35,E11 18,754 B
{325,350} (387510 517
45,804 59,352 151
11544, 578} (2,407 811} 3,283
TABE 31T (21,335,781} (27, 143§
8,332} 11.229) -
4,548 3,199,380 )
125,593 |3.250.081) ik
39,405 [49.548) {125}
5,951,470 23,944, 770} (23,571}
49,504} 159.362) L3 1]
32,640 358,379 437
6,234,305 |23, 645,753} (23,585)
5,013,607 36,836,152 4,645
(11,005,439} [13.098,570) -
(nas11) [18.794) &8}
16,321,843} 23,718 398 34,558
[87.237) T2EA5 T3
347,156 07519 .
FE5,005 BEN554 a73

162/299



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
For the financial pear from 1 fuly 2018 to 30 June 2049

Series 2016 0PX -
Mikckel 400 Fund
30 June 2009
Y000
Canalhy Mot Eroam oparabing activities
it W (b3 Por tha Fnancial year [L.373,085)
Afustments lor
Disidund incomme {358,624
Withiolding tax on dividand incomia 53,535
Dperating (less) before working capital changes 11,732,144}
Dacraasa in fmancial assets at fair valss through pralit or los 1,701,595
[Digcyaasa) b finsecial Rabfities at fair valua through profit or boas 5, 5800
[Increase] in recahabia {55400
[Dcraasal in paabies [4,389)
Dairasa In cash ak Brolusr 45 B57
Mt cash proidid by oparation 30,600
Incim taw paid {59,535
Dividends recaboad 3BE 008
et cach providied by operating stivites 353,073
Carshh Movwaes usaied in] by Tinamcing activitias
Procaads fram issue of units fo squiy hokders
Paymnents feam redamption of enits from squity holders -
Disteibvution paid to Usithelders ﬂTI..EH
Mt cash outilew Trom linandng activities 271,772}
Het chasgge in cash and ash eguivalonis E7. 301
Cash ard cash aguivakants at tha baginning of fieancial year 198,838
Cichy aind cash egquivalons ot th ed of the inaial yoar 2BE 139

Thm sccoepanying rotes sre an ingagral part of thss fizsndal salemants.
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General Information

PassiM Trust {the “Trust™), is a unit trust established as an umbrella fund under the laws of the Cayman
Islands pursuant to the Trust Deed dated 2 December 2014, as amended and restated pursuant to an
Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust dated 25 July 2018 (the “Trust Deed™).

For the purposes of AIFMD, the Trust will constitute a Non-European Economic Area (“NOM-EEA™) AIF with
a European Economic Area (“EEA") AIFM. The distribution of this trust is restricted to lapanese investors
only.

The Trust has been established as an umbrella fund and accordingly the assets of the Trust are separated
into different sub-Funds (together, the “Sub-Funds™). As at 30 June 2020, the Trust holds 14 Sub-Funds,
Serles 2016 IPX-Nikkei 400 Fund, Series 2016 MNikkel 225 Fund, Series 2016 TOPIX Fund,
Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund, China 2x Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund,
Imdia 2% Bull Fund, India 2x Bear Fund, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609, AUD Target Maturity Bond
Furmd 201612, US Technology 2X Bull Fund and US Technalogy 2X Bear Fund.

For the Sub-Funds Serles 2016 TOPIX Fund, Serles 2016 IPX — Nikkei 400 Fund, Serles 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund
and Serles 2018 S&P 500 Fund for which this Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements have been
prepared, the fund administrators are State Street Fund Services (lreland) Limited and State Street
Cayman Trust Company Limited. Fund custodian are State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited and
State Street Bank and Trust Company. For the remaining 10 Sub-Funds, the fund administrators are BNP
Paribas Securities Services and BMP Paribas Fund Administration Services {lreland) Limited and fund
custodian is BNP Paribas Securities Services, A separate Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements
have been prepared for these 10 Sub-Funds.

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund commenced its operations from 20 September 2016, Series 2016 JPX = Nikkei 400
Fund commenced its operations from 14 October 2016, Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund commenced its
operations from 24 October 2016 and Series 2018 5&P 500 Fund commenced its operations from 27
November 2018,

The Sub-Funds invest in Index Securities (as defined in the Supplements of the Sub-Funds) having
significantly the same weightings as those of the IPX-Nikkei Index 400, Nikkei 225 Index, S&P 500 Index
and TOPIX Index and Financial Derivative Instruments (“FDI"), including, but not limited to, futures for
tracking the parformance of the IPX-Nikkel Index 400, Nikkel 225 Index, S&P 500 Index and TOPIX Indax
and for the purpose of efficient portfolio management, including equitisation of cash exposures.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1. General Information (continued)

The Sub-Funds operate principally as index tracking funds and as such, the adverse performance of an
Index Security will not ardinarily result in the elimination of that |ndex Security from the Sub-Funds'
portfolios. The Sub-Funds may not be invested in all the Index Securities of the IPX-Nikkel index 400,
Mikkel 225 |ndex, S&P 500 Index and TOPIX Index at all times due to various factors such as, but not limited
to, the passive investment strategy of the Sub-Funds and changes to the composition of the JPX-Nikkei
Index 400, Nikkei 225 Index, S&P 500 Index and TOPIX Index. For example, when an Index Security ceases
to be a constituent of the JPX-Nikkei Index 400, Nikkei 225 Index, &P 500 Index and TOPIX Index, Nikko
Asset Management Co., Ltd. ("Investment Manager”) may rebalance the Sub-Funds' portfolio by selling
the outgoing Index Security and using the proceeds to invest in a replacement Index Security, which will
reflect the replacement constituent of the JPX-Nikkei Index 400, Nikkei 225 Index, S&P 500 Index and
TOPIX Index. However, the Sub-Funds' portfolio may at any time contain securities which are not a
constituent of the JPX-Nikkei Index 400, Nikkei 225 Index, S&P 500 Index and TOPIX Index, but will be
within the permitted investment univerze of the Sub-Funds.

2.  Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to the financial year presented, unless otherwise
stated.

All references to net asset value (“NAYV™) throughout these financial statements refer to net assets
attributable to registered holders of Units {"Unitholders™) unless otherwize stated.

{a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Sub-Funds have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS").

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenzes.
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation {continued)

Actual results may differ from these estimates, Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revision: to accounting estimates are recognized in the financial year in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The base currency of the Sub-Fund:s (excluding Serles 2018 S&P 500 Fund) az well as the operational
currency of the redeemable participating units (the "Units”) is lapanese Yen ("JPY"). The base currency of
Serles 2018 S&P 500 Fund is United States Dollar ("USD™). The financial statements of the Sub-Funds
{excluding Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund) are presented in JPY. The financial statements of Series 2018 5&P
500 Fund are presented in USD.

Mew standards, amendments and interpretations issued and effective for the financial year ended 30 June
2020

IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments™ was issued in June 2017 and became effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, It clarifies the accounting for uncertainties in income taxes
which is applied to the determination of taxable profits (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments in accordance with 145 12, It
clarifies that the Entity should consider whether tax treatments should be considered independently or
collectively, whether the relevant tax authority will or will not accept each tax treatment and, the
requirement to reassess its judgements and estimates if facts and circumstances change. The application
of IFRIC 23 has not had a significant effect on the Sub-Funds® financial position, performance or disclosures
i its financial statements.

ments and in i i financial r

Jume 2020 and not early adopted

IFRS 17: Insurance Contracts, was ssued in May 2017 and will become effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023. It applies to: insurance contracts, including reinsurance contracts,
Issued by an entity; reinsurance contracts held by an entity; and investment contracts with discretionary
participation features ssued by an entity that issues Insurance contracts. An insurance contract is defined
as "a contract under which one party (the lssuer) accepts significant insurance risk from another party (the
policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the polieyholder if a specified uncertain future event [the
insured event) adversely affects the policyholder’. The new standard is not expected to have any
significant impact on the Sub-Funds™ financial position, performance or disclosures in its financial
statements.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b} Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

{i} Classification

The Sub-Funds classify their investments in equity securities and FDI as financial assets or liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9 "Financial Instrurnents™ ("IFRS 97).

{if}) Valuation of Investments

LP. Morgan Mansart Management Limited (the "Manager”) has appointed State Street Fund
Services (lreland) Limited (the “Administrator”) for the purpose: of calculating the NAV of the
Sub-funds” and valuing each asset in accordance with the pricing hierarchy and procedures outlined
in the Securities Valuation Price Source Agreemaent.

The Investment Manager mist assist the Adminkstrator and the Manager in pricing the azsats of
the Sub-funds’ where applicable, including the provision of any supporting pricing information.

Realised gains and losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent the
difference between disposal proceeds or valuation and historic cost and take into account all
brokers' charges and commissions. Realised and unrealised gains or losses on financlal assets at fair
value through profit or loss are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

{ifi) Recognition and derecognition

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade date - the date on which the Sub-Funds
commit to purchase or sell the investments. Imvestments are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Sub-Funds have transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

32
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting pelicies |continued)

(b) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
{iv) Measurement

Investments are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs for financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed as incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investments are measured at fair value, The fair value of financial
assets and liabilities traded in active markets is based on their quoted market prices at the close of
trading on the reporting date. The quoted market prices used for financial asset: held by the
Sub-Funds are the market closing prices at reporting date.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the falr value of the “financial assets at falr value through
profit or loss™ categary are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within “net galns
of financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss” in the financlal year in which they arise.

{e) Financial Derivative Instruments

FD1 are recognised at fair value on the date onwhich a FD| contract is entered into and subsequently
are re-measured at their Fair value. All FDI are carried as assets when their fair value is positive and
as liabilities when their fair value is negative. Changes in fair values of FDI are included in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. The price is based on counterparty tradeable market price.
The fair value of future contracts is based upon daily quoted settlernent prices. Changes in the value
of the contract are recognized as unrealized gain or losses in the income statement. The fair value
of open forward foreign currency exchange contracts and open forelgn currency exchange spot
contracts is calculated as the difference between the contracted rate and the current forward rate
that would close out the contract on the Statement of Financial Position date.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
{d} Fair value estimation

The falr value of financial asset and liabilities traded in active markets (such as publicly traded FDI and
trading securities) is based on guoted market prices at the date of the Statement of Financial
Position. When the Sub-Funds hold FDI with offsetting market risks, it uses mid-market prices as a basis
for establishing fair values for the offsetting risk positions and applies this bid or asking price to the net
open position, as appropriate.The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an
active market is determined using bid price of broker quotes. In particular, the fair value of debt securities
is determined by reference to the broker quotes as obtained from independent pricing sources including
Financial Times Evaluated and Bloomberg.

{e] Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Financial
Position when thera iz a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.

() Amounts due from,/to broker

Amounts due from/fto broker represent recelvables for securities sold and payables for securities
purchased that have been contracted for but not yet settled or delivered at the financial year end

respectivehy.

(g} Income and expenses

Imterest income is recognised on a time-proportionate basis using the effective interest method. It
includes interest income from cash and cash eguivalents and on debt securities at fair value through profit

or loss.

Expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Ssummary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{h) Foreign currency translation
{1} Functional and presentation currency

Itemz included in the Sub-Funds' financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which it operates (the “functional currency™).

This is JPY for the Sub-Funds {excluding Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund) which reflects the primary capital
ralsing market. The financial statements are presented in the IPY which is also the Sub-Funds'
{excluding Serles 2018 S&P 500 Fund) presentation currency. The functional presentation currency

of Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund is USD,
(i} Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into
the functional currency, using the exchange rate prevailing at the financial position date.

Foraign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at period-end exchange rates of all assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.,

The Sub-Funds do not Isolate that portion of gains or lasses on trading securities and FDI which is due
to changes in forelgn exchange rates from that which s due to changes In the market price of
securities. Such fluctuations are included in the net gaine or losse: an financlial assetz and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the Staternent of Comprehensive Income.

{i} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
imvestrients with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts, if any,
are shown as liabilities in the Staterment of Financial Position.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Ssummary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(i} Cash at Broker

Cash at broker Includes margin depositz for futures contracts which relates to collateral held with the
relevant broker.

(K} Redeemable units

Unitholders may request the Sub-Funds to redeem all or any of their units on any redemption date at the
net asset value per unit on such redemption date, in accordance with the redemption procedures. The
minimurm redemption amount that applies to the Sub-Funds are contained in the Prospectus or, as the
case may be, the relevant Supplement. The Manager may, in ts absolute discretion, walve the minimum
redemption amount for each class in general, or in respect of a specific redemption reguest in whole or
im part.

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund, Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund and Series 2018 5&P 500 Fund have two classes of
units in issue as at 30 June 2020, Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund has one class units in issue as at 30
June 2020, Units are classified as eguity when there is only one class of units outstanding for a Sub-Fund
as at the Statement of Financial Position date and these units meet all the other conditions of equity
classification under 1AS 32 “Financial Instruments Presentation”, including the condition that these units
wiere the most subordinated units in issue in that Sub-Fund.

{I} Taxation

The Sub-Funds currently incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and
capital gains. Such income or gains are recorded gross of withholding taxes In the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Withholding taxes are shown as a separate item in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Refer to Note 15 for details of taxation.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Ssummary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{m) Preliminary expenses

The preliminary expenses of the Trust and each Sub-Fund are borne by the respective Sub-Funds. The
preliminary expense: ineurred In the establishment of the Trust and the Sub-Funds are recognised as
expenses of the Sub-Funds in the financial yvear in which they arizse,

{n] Distributions

The Manager has complete discretion as to the amount and timing of the distributions payable to the
Unitholders of the Sub-Funds. All distributions will be pald net of any taxes required to be withheld.

3. Financial risk management

The Sub-Funds activities expose them to a variety of risks, including but not limited to market price risk,
interest rate risk, currency rizk, credit risk and liguidity risk arizing from the financial instruments held.
The financial instruments are held in accordance with the published investment policies of the Sub-Funds
and managed accordingly to achieve the investment objectives.

The risks and respective risk management policies employed to manage these risks are disclosed below:

{a) Market price risk

Market risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It represents
the potential loss the Sub-Funds might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price
movements, Market risk is managed by the Manager. In the case of these Sub-Funds, market risk within
the FDI will be significant, but is entirely in line with investor returns. Realised and unrealised gains are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the financial year in which they arise.

An outbreak of an infectious respiratory lliness caused by a novel coronavirus known as COVID-19 was
first detected in China in December 2019 and has now developed into a glabal pandemic. This coranavirus
has resulted in travel restrictions, closed international borders, enhanced health screenings at ports of
entry and elsewhere, disruption of and delays in healthcare service preparation and delivery, prolonged
guarantines, cancellations, supply chain disruptions, and lower consumer demand, as well as general
concern and uncertainty.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

{a) Market price risk {continued)

The impact of COVID-19 has adversely affected the economies of many nations across the entire global
economy, individual issuers and capital markets, and could continue to extents that cannot necessarily be
foreseen. In addition, the impact of infectious ilinesses in emerging market countries may be greater due
to generally less established healthcare systems. Public health crises caused by the COVID-19 outbreak
may exacerbate other pre-existing political, soclal and economic risks In certain countries or globally. The
duration of the COVID-1% outbreak and its effects cannot be determined with certainty.

As at reporting date the overall market exposure [s as follows:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 30 June 2020
IFY 000

Held for trading

Equities 6,197,618

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 6,197,618

Held for trading

Futures (8,715]

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (8,715)

If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net assets
attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an increase/decrease of
JPY61,889,030.

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2020
IPY 000
Held for trading
Equities 18,561,403
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss m
E ]
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Market price risk [continued)

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund [continued) 30 June 2020
IFY' 000

Held for trading

Futures (5,450]

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss W

If the prices of listed equities and FOM had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net assets
attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an increase/decrease of
JPY185,559,130.

Series 2018 58P 500 Fund 30 June 2020
UsoDooo

Held for trading

Equities 293,552

Futures 251

Forwards 57

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss T,Bﬁﬂ

Held for trading

Forwards (B&1)

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss W

If the prices of listed equities and FOM had increased/decreazed by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net assets
attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an increase/decrease of
UsD2,931,790,
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

{a) Market price risk ([continued)

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund 30 June 2020
IFY' 000

Held for trading

Equities 10,733,066

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss m

Held for trading

Futures (7.961)

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss W

If the prices of listed equities and FOM had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net assets
attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an increase/decrease of
JPY107,251,050.

As at 30 June 2019 the overall market exposure is as follows:

Series 2016 TOPILX Fund 30 June 2019
IFY 000

Held for trading

Equities 10,566,401

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss m

Held for trading -

Futures (1,231)

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (1,231)

If the prices of listed eguitiez and FDI had increazed/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net aszets
attributable to Unithalders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an increase/decrease of
JPY105,651, 700,
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

{a) Market price risk ([continued)

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2019
IFY 000

Held for trading

Equities 24,338,763

Futures 2,774

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 24,341,537

If the prices of listed equities and FIM had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net assets
attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an increase/decrease of
JPY243,415,370.

Series 2018 58P 500 Fund™* 30 June 2019
UsoDooo

Held for trading

Equities 27,134

Futures 14

Forwards 1

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss —IT,MEI

Held for trading

Forwards**

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss -

*This Sub-Fund launched on 27 November 2018
*SEargards which are less than $500 are rounded to e,

If the prices of listed equities and FIM had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net assets
attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial period would have resulted in an increase/decrease of
USD271,490.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

{a) Market price risk (continued)

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund 30June 2019
JPY'000

Held for trading

Equities 15,051,097

Futures 187

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15,051,284

If the prices of listed equities and FOM had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net assets
attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an increaze/decrease of
JPY150,512 840,

{b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes In interest rates will affect future cash flows or
the fair values of financial Instruments. Changes to prevalling interest rate: or changes in expectations of
future rates may result in an increase or decrease in the value of the securities held. In general, if interest
rates rise, the value of fixed income securities will decline. A decline in interest rates will in general have
the opposite effect. Other assets and liabilities bear no interest rate risk. The Sub-Funds invest primarily
im equity securities, therefore is not significantly exposed to interest rate risk and no sensitivity analysis
has been presented.

{e) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Sub-Funds are not exposed to currency risk arising from balances and transactions in
forelgn currencies as the majority of their azsets and liabilities are denominated in JPY and USD, the
Sub-Funds’ functional and presentation currency. Accordingly, the Management considers that it is not
necessary to present a sensitivity analysis of currency risk.
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)
{d) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or a counterparty will be unable or unwilling to meet a commitment
{including payment of amounts in full when due) that it has entered into with the Sub-Funds.

The Sub-Funds will be exposed to credit risk on parties with whom it trades and will aleo bear the risk of
sottlement default. Cash and trading securities are held with the Custodian throughout the year. All
trading securities held by the Sub-Funds are companies listed on recognised stock exchanges in lapan and
the United Statez, None of them are in the nature of debt. The zettlement of equities with the
counterparty = on an against delivery basis and iz regulated by rules of respective stock exchanges. |n
general, there is no credit risk involved for such kind of cash settlernent.

For the purpose of cash management, the Sub-Fund has bank accounts with the Custodian and Broker.
Intertrust Corporate Services {Cayman) Limited as Trustee has appointed State Street Custodial Services

{Ireland) Limited and State Street Bank and Trust Company as its Custodian.

All the assets/(liabilities) of the Sub-Funds were held with the Custodian except cash held at the Broker,
Mizuho Securities Singapore, for futures trading.

The tables below summarises the amount of the Sub-Funds” assets held with the Custodian and Broker
with external rating and maximum exposure to credit risk as at 30 Jure 2020 and as at 30 June 2019:

Series 2016  Series 2016 Series 2018 5&P Series 2016 IPX -

30 June 2020 S&P TOPIX  Nikkei 225 500 Fund  Nikkei 400 Fund
Global Fund Fund USD’000 IPY'000
Ratings IPY'000 IPY’000
Assets at Custodian AA- 6,338,433 18,761,763 293,816 10,881,570
Assets at Broker A 124,472 165,000 2,421 97,318
43
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

{d} Credit risk {continued)

Series 2016  Series 2016 Series 2018 5&P Series 2016 JPX -

30 June 2019 S&P TOPIX  Nikkei 225 500 Fund®  Nikkei 400 Fund
Global Fund Fund USD’000 JPY'000
Ratings IPY'000 IPY’000

Assets at Custodian AA- 10,820,158 24,622,102 27,147 15,337,423

Assets at Broker A 80,540 166,336 185 62,301

*This Sub-Fund launched on 27 November 2018

(e} Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk of encountering difficulty in meeating obligations aszociated with financial
liabilities.

The Sub-Funds are exposed to dally cash redemptions of participating units. Sub-Funds tharefore invest
the majority of thelrs assets in investments that are traded in an active market and can be readlly disposed.
The Sub-Funds' majority assets are listed securities which are considered readily realisable as they are
listed on well established stock exchanges.

The tables on the following page analyse the Sub Funds® financial liabilities which will be settled on a net
basiz into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the Statement of Financial
Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. All payables are due for settlement within one month.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

{e)] Liguidity risk [continued)
Serles 2016 TOPIX Fund

As at 30 June 2020

Financial llabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Withholding tax payable

Administration fees payable

Audit fees payable

Management fees payable

Custodian fees payable

Legal and professional fees payable

Other payables

Met asset value attributable to redeeming participating unitholders

Total liabilities

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

As at 30 June 2020

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Withholding tax payable

Administration fee payable

Audit fees payable

Management fees payable

Custodian fees payable

Legal and professional fees payable

Amounts due to brokers

Other payables

Met asset value attributable to redeeming participating unitholders

Total liabilities

Less than 3 months
JPY 000

8,715
1,520
10,589
712
11,620
30,610
1,272
862
6,428,371

6,494,271

Less than 3 months
IPY'000

5,490
4,127
16,418

845

17,966
3,067
1,992
26,514
1,239
18,885,154

18,962,812
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

{e)] Liguidity risk [continued)

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund
As at 30 June 2020 Less than 3 months
UsD'000
Financial llabflities at fair value through profit or loss 681
Withholding tax payable 111
Administration fees payable 141
Management fees payable 330
Custodian fees payable 116
Legal and professional fees payable 30
Other payables 167
Met asset value attributable to redeeming participating unitholders 302,178
Total liabilities 303,754
Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund
As at 30 June 2020 Less than 3 months
IPY'000
Financial llabflities at fair value through profit or loss 7,961
Withholding tax payable 2,933
Administration fees payable 12,448
Audit fees payable 31
Management fees payable 15,315
Custodian fees payable 4,044
Legal and professional fees payable 2,037
Other payables 2,879
Total liabilities 47,648
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

{e) Liguidity risk {continued)

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund

As at 30 June 2019

Fimancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Withholding tax payable

Administration fees payable

Audit fees payable

Management fees payable

Custodian fees payable

Legal and professional fees payable

Set up fees payable

Amounts due to brokers

Other payables

Met asset value attributable to redeeming participating unitholdars
Total liabilities

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

As at 30 June 2019

Withholding tax payable

Administration fee payable

Audit fees payable

Management fees payable

Custodian fees payable

Legal and professional fees payable

Set up fees payable

Other payables

Met asset value attributable to redeeming participating unitholders
Total liabilities

Less than 3 months
JPY'000

1,231
2,487
9,264

788

8,264
20,646
2,381
1,178
3,148
2,602
10,896,740

10,548,730

Lezs than 3 months
IPY'000

5,611
15,009
653
18,087
691

3,190
1,280
3,209
24,778,762

24,826,492
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

{e)] Liguidity risk [continued)

Series 2018 58P 500 Fund*

As at 30 June 2019 Less than 3 months

UsD'000
Withholding tax payable 23
Administration fee payable 43
Audit fees payable 9
Management fees payable B4
Custodian fees payable 12
Legal and professional fees payable 18
Other payables 33
Met asset value attributable to redeeming participating unitholders 28,206
Total liabilities 28,408

* This Sub-Fund lruriched on 27 Novenber 2018,

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

As at 30 June 2019 Less than 3 months

IPY'000
Withholding tax payable 3,890
Administration fees payable 9,807
Audit fees payable 716
Management fees payable 10,623
Custodian fees payable 915
Legal and professional fees payable 3,226
Set up fees payable 2,612
Amounts due to brokers 6,309
Other payables 7,257
Total liabilities 45,355
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

(f) Capital risk management

The Sub-Funds' capital iz represented by the Units in the Sub-Funds and shown as net assets attributable
to the holders of redeemable units in the Statement of Financial Position. In order to achleve the
Imvestrment objectives, the Sub-Funds endeavar to imiest its capital in accordance with the investment
policies as autlined in the Prospectus, whilst maintaining sufficient liguidity to meet redemption requests.
Such liquidity is augmented by the holding of liquid investments.

4. Fair value measurement

The Sub-Funds classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 - Inputs that reflects unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Sub-Funds have the ability to access at measurement date;

Imvestments whoze values are bazed on quoted market prices in active markets, and are therefore
classified within Level 1.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or
indirectly, ineluding inputs in markets that are not considerad to be active;

Imvestrments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued bazed on guoted
market prices, dealer guotations or alternative pricing sources supported by obsarvable input: are
clazsified within Level 2.

As Level 2 Iinvestments include positions that are not traded in active markets andfor are subject to
transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/for non-transferability, which are
generally based on available market information.

Lewvel 3 - Valuation technigues using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments
where the valuation technigue includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs
could have a significant impact on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are
valued based on guoted prices for similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

49
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4.  Fair value measurement {continued)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement iz categorised in its antirety
is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety. For thiz purpose, the significance of an input Is azsezsed against the fair value measurement in
its entiraty. IF a falr value measurement uses observable Inputs that reguire significant adjustment based
on unobservable inputs, that measurement s a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a
particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgement, considering factors
specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes "observable” requires significant judgment by the Managers, The
Managers consider observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed
orupdated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively
imvalved in the relevant market.

The following tables analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Sub-Funds’ financial assets and liabilities
measured at falr value at the financial year ended 30 June 2020:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
IPY' 000 1PY 000 1PY'000 IPY 000
Financial assets
Financial assets at falr value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 6,197,618 - - 6,197,618
Total 6,197,618 - - 6,197,618
Financial liabilities
Financial Nabilitles at fair
value through profit or loss
Futures (8,715) - - (8,715)
Total (8,715) - - (8,715)
50
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. Falr value measurement (continued)

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Tatal
JPY'000 IPY 000 IPY 000 IPY'000
Financial assats
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 18,561,403 - - 18,561,403
Total 18,561,403 . - 18,561,403
Financial liabilities
Financial Habilities at foir
value through prafit or loss
Futures (5,450) - - {5,490)
Total {5,490) . - {5,490)
Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund
Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Total
UsD'000 UsD'000 UsD'000 UsD'000
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through prafit or loss
Equity securities 293,552 - - 293,552
Futures 251 - - 251
Forwards - 57 - 57
Total 293,803 57 - 293,860
51
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. Fair value measurement |continued)

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund (continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Lewel 3 Total
uspD'000 UsD'000 UsD 000 UsSD'000
Financial liabilities
Financial fabilities at fair value
through prafit or loss
Forwards - (681} - (681)
Total - (681) - (681}
Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
IPY' 000 IFY' 000 IPY 000 JPY'000
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through prafit or loss
Equity securities 10,733,066 - - 10,733,066
Total 10,733,066 - - 10,733,066
Financial liabilities
Financial Habilities at foir
value through prafit or loss
Futures [7,961) . . {7,961)
Total {7,961) . - {7,961)
52
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
4. Fair value measurement (continued)

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Sub-Funds’ financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value at the financial year ended 30 June 2019:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund
Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Total
IPY 000 IPY'000 1PY" 0 IPY 000
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 10,566,401 - - 10,566,401
Total 10,566,401 - - 10,566,401
Financial liabilities
Financial Habilities at foir value
through profit or loss
Futures (1,231) - = {1,231)
Total {1,231) - - {1,231)
53
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. Fair value measurement |continued)

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
IFY' 000 IFY 000 IFY'000 JPY'000
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through praofit or loss
Equity securities 24,338,763 - = 24,338,763
Futuras 2,774 - - 2,774
Total 24,341,537 - . 24,341,537
Series 2018 5&P 500 Fund*
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
uso'000 UsD'000 UsD'000 UsSD 000
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 27,134 - - 27,134
Futures 14 - - 14
Farwards - 1 - 1
Total 27,148 1 - 27,149
54
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. Fair value measurement |continued)

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund® (continued)
Level 1 Level 2 Lewvel 3 Total

usp'000 usD'000 UsD'000 UsD'000
Financial liabilities
Financial Habilities at fair value
through prafit or loss

Forwards** - - - -

Total - - - .

* This Sub-Fund launched on 27 November 20018,
5 pypl 3 seourities which are less than 5500 are rounded to rero.

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

IPY" 000 1PY 000 IPY* 000 IPY 000
Financial assats
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 15,061,087 - . 15,051,087
Futures 187 - - 187
Total 15,051,284 - - 15,051,284

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the end of the
financial year and are deemed to have occurred when the pricing source or methodology used to price an
imvestrent has changed which triggers a change in level as defined under IFRS 13. There wera no transfers
between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the financial year.

&5
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. Fair value measurament (continued)

Assets and llabllities not carried at fair value are carrled at amortised cost; their carrying values are a
reasonable approximation of fair value. Cash includes deposits held with banks and other short-term
imvestrnents in an active market and they are categorised as Level 1. Recelvable for investments sold and
other recelvables include the contractual amounts for settlement of trades and other obligations due to
the Sub-Funds. Other payables represent the contractual amounts and obligations due by the Sub-Funds
for settlement of trades and expenszes. All receivable and payable balances are categorised as Level 2. The
value of redeeming units is calculated based on the net difference between total assets and all other
liabilities. A demand feature is attached to these units, as they are redeemable at the holders’ option and
can be put back to the Sub-Funds at any dealing date for cash equal to a proportionate share of the
Sub-Fund's net asset value attributable to the share class, As such, Level 2 iz deemed to be the most
appropriate categorisation for the net assets attributable to holders of redeeming units.

5. Financial instruments by category

Financial assets

Apart fram investrents disclozed inthe Statement of Financial Position which are classified as at fair value
through profit or loss, all other financial assets a:z disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position,
Iincluding other recelvables, amounts due from broker and cash and cash equivalents, are categorized as
“other financlial receivables".

Financial liabilities

Apart from Investments disclosed in the Staterment of Financlal Position which are classified as fair value
through profit or loss, all financial liabilities as disclosed in the Staterent of Financlal Position, including
administration fee payable, management fee payable, trustee fee payable, audit fee payable, amounts
due to broker and other payables are categorised as “other financial liabilities"”.

6. Financial Derivative Instruments by category

The Sub-Funds hold futures and forwards.

A futures contract is an agreement between two parties to buy or sell a security or currency at a specific
price or rate at a future date. The daily change in contract value is recorded as an unrealized gain or loss

and the Sub-Funds recognise a realised gain or loss when the contract is closed. Unrealised gaing and
lozses on futures contracts are recognised in the Statement of Comprahenzive Income.
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. Financial Derivative Instruments by category (continued)

A forward currency contract is an agreement between two parties to buy and sell a currency at a sat price
on a future date (or to pay or receive the amount of the change in relative values of the two currencies).
The market price of a forward currency contract fluctuatas with changes in forward currency exchange
rates.

As of 30 June 2020, the Sub-Funds’ Statement of Financial Position included the following Ffutures:

30 June 2020 Notional value Fair value
IPY 000 1PY 000

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 242,439 (&,715)
Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund 288,321 (5,490)
Series 2016 JPX = Mikkel 400 Fund 241,094 (7,961)
30 June 2020 Notional value Fair value
UsD"000 UsD"000

Serles 2018 58P 500 Fund 2,649 281

As of 30 June 2020, the Sub-Funds’ Statement of Financlal Position Iincluded the following forwards:

30 June 2020 Unrealised loss

UsD"000

Series 2018 58P 500 Fund [624)
57
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
6. Financial Derivative Instruments by category (continued)

As of 30 June 2019, the Sub-Funds’ Statement of Financial Position included the following futures:

30 June 2019 MNotional value Fair value
IPY 000 1PY 000

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 328,021 {1,231)
Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund 428,062 2,774
Series 2016 JPX = Mikkel 400 Fund 350,548 187
30 June 2019 MNotional value Fair value
UsD"o00 UsSD"000

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund* 1,002 14

*This Sub-Fund Bunched 27 Nowemnber 2018

As of 30 June 2019, the Sub-Funds’ Statement of Financial Position included the following forwards:

30 June 2019 Unrealised gain
UsD 000
Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund* 1

*Thiz Sub-Fund launched 2¥ November 2008,
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

7. Mot gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 30 June 2020
1PY 000

Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss:
Realised gain on investments 48,687
Realized gain on financial derivatives 33,532
Unrealised gain on investments 349,220
Unrealised loss on financial derivatives (7,484)
424,355
Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2020
IPY' 000
Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss:
Realized gain on investmeants 271,328
Realized gain on financial derivatives 43,664
Unrealised gain on investmants 1,686,746
Unrealised loss on financial derivatives (8,265)
1,993,473
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

7. MNet gain/{loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss {continued)

Series 2018 58P 500 Fund

30 June 2020
UsD"oo0a

Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss:

Realised loss on investments
Realized gain on financial derivatives
Unrealised gain on investments

Unrealised losz on financial derivatives

Series 2016 JIPX — Mikkei 400 Fund

(13,744
925
633

(389)

(12,575)

30 June 2020

IFY'000

MNet gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss:

Realized loss on investments
Realized gain on financial derivatives
Unrealised gain on investments

Unrealised losz on financial derivatives

(274,907)
35,017
879,174

(8,148)

631,136
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

7. Met gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss {[continued)

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 30 June 2019
JPY' 000

Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss:

Realized gain on investmants 424,140

Realized loss on financial derivatives (39,409)

Unrealised los: on investments {1,883,350)

Unrealised gain on financial derivatives 8,232
{1,490,387)

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2019

IPY'000

Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss:

Realised loss on Investments {276,680)

Realised loss on financial derivatives {20,152)

Unrealised loss on investments {2,134,978)

Unrealised gain on financial derivatives 4,004
(2,437,806)
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

7. Met gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss {[continued)

Series 2018 58P 500 Fund™* 30 June 2019
UsD'ooa

Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss:
Realized gain on investmants 2,445
Realized gain on financial darivatives 25
Unrealised gain on investiments 9g2
Unrealised gain on financial derivatives 16
3,468
*This Sub-Fund launched 27 Novemnber 2018
Series 2016 IPX — Mikkei 400 Fund 30 June 2019
IPY'D00
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss:
Realized loss on investments (82,532)
Realized loss on financial derivatives (41,657)
Unrealised losz on investments (1,539,028)
Unrealised gain on financial derivatives 5,767
(1,657,450)
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8. Redeemable units in issue

Redeemable participating units are classified as equity for Series 2016 IPX - Nikkel 400 Fund and liability
for Series 2016 TOPIX Fund, Series 2016 Mikkel 225 Fund and Serles 2018 58P 500 Fund. Series 2016 TOPIX
Fund, Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund and Series 2018 5&P 500 Fund do not fulfil the criteria of having a single
share class required to classify redeemable participating units as equity. Redeemable participating units
are carried at the redemption amount that is payable at the date of the Statement of Financial Position if
the holders exercise their rights to put the units back to the Sub-Funds for cash at the relevant dealing

day.

Redesmable participating units are issued and redeemed at the option of the holders at prices based on
the Sub-Funds” NAY per unit at the time of ksue or redemption.

The Sub-Funds" NAV per unit iz calculated by dividing the net assets attributable to holders of each class
of redeemable particlpating units with the total number of outstanding redeemable participating units for
each respective class, In accordance with the provisions of the Sub-Funds' regulations, investment
positions are valued based on the quoted market prices for the purpose of determining the NAV per unit
for subseriptions and redemptions. Unitholders may redeem thelr units on any dealing day which is dally
im whole or In part. In addition, in accordance with the explanatory memeorandum, the preliminary
expenses incurred in the formation of the Trust and the Sub-Funds are borne by the Sub-Funds.

Series 2016 TOPIX, Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund and Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund have two classes of units
imissue as at 30 June 2020, Class A and Class B, Series 2016 1PX — Nikkei 400 Fund has one class of units in
issue as at and 30 June 2020, Class Al

198/299



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8. Redeemable units in issue (continued)

The movements of the Redeemable Participating Units during the financial year from 1 July 2019 to 30
Jurne 2020 are as follows:

Series 2016 TOPLX Fund 30 June 2020 30 June 2020
Class A Class B
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the
financial year 6,974,500 35,891
Units issued - -
Units redeemed (2,874,500) (26,000)
Mumber of units in ssue at the end of the financial
year 4,100,000 12,891
Met assets attributable to Unitholders - JFY'000 6,408,485 19,882
et asset value per unit - JIPY'000 1.56 1.54
Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2020 30 June 2020
Class A Class B
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the
financial year 1,175,700 3,023
Units issuad 647 600 484,000
Units redeemead (1,461,300) =
Mumber of units in ssue at the end of the financial
year 366,000 487,023
Met assets attributable to Unitholders - JPY'000 8,153,365 10,731,789
et asset value per unit - JIPY'000 22.28 22.04
64
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8. Redeemable units in issue (continued)

Series 2018 58P 500 Fund

Number of units in issue at the beginning of the
financial year

Units issued
Units redeemed

Number of units in issue at the end of the financial
year

Met assets attributable to Unitholders - USD'000

Met asset value per unit - USD'000

Series 2016 JPX — Mikkei 400 Fund

Number of units in issue at the beginning of the
financial year

Units issued

Units redeemed

Number of units in Esue at the end of the financial
year

Met assets attributable to equity Unitholders- 1PY' 000

Met asset value per unit - IPY'000

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
Class A Class B
25415 2,223

499 600 2,618.100
(366,600) {1,437,901)
158 415 1182422
185,882 116,285
117 0.10

30 June 2020

Class A

1,127 400

{338,000)

T8G9, 400

10,968,999

13.90
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8. Redeemable units in issue (continued)

Series 2016 TOPIX, Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund and Series 2018 5&P 500 Fund have two classes of units in
issue as at 30 June 2019, Class A and Class B. Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund has one class of units in
issue as at and 30 June 2019, Class A, The movements of the Redeemable Participating Units during the
financial year/period from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 are as follows:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 30 June 2019 30 June 2019
Class A Class B
:.I:ar:her of units in issue at the beginning of the financial 10,624,500 38,891
Units issued 2,750,000
Units redeemed (6,400,000}
Number of units in lssue at the end of the financial year 6,974,500 38,891
Net assets attributable to Unitholders - JPY' 000 10,837,077 59,663
Net asset value per unit - JIPY000 1.55 1.53
Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2019 30 June 2019
Class A Class B
::ar:ber of units in issue at the baginning of the financial 108,000 39,423
Units issuad 1,215,000 413,000
Units redeemed (144,300) (449,400)
Number of units in izsue at the end of the financial year 1,179,700 3,023
Met assets attributable to Unitholders - IPY'000 24,715,217 63,545
Net asset value per unit - JPY'000 20.85 21.02
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
8. Redeemable units in issue [continued)
Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund™* 30 June 2019 30 June 2019

Class A Clazs B

Number of units in izsue at the beginning of the

financial year

Units issued 145,100 2,223

Units redeemed {119,685)

::ar:ber of units in issue at the end of the financial 25,415 2,223

et assets attributable to Unitholders - USD'000 27,996 209

Met ascet value per unit - USD'000 1.10 0.09

* Thils Sub-Fund lsunched 27 November 2018,

Series 2016 JPX — Mikkei 400 Fund 30 June 2019
Class A

Number of units in izsue at the beginning of the financial 1,127 400

year

Units issued

Units redeemad

Number of units in issue at the end of the financial year 1,127 400

Net assets attributable to equity Unitholders- IPY'000 15,406,976

et asset value per unit - JIPY'000 13.67

9. Management fees

An aggregate amount of the management fees described below as (a), (b) and (sc) is payable to the
Manager out of the assetz of the Sub-Funds. The Manager will pay, out of the management fees, the fees
of the lnvestment Manager and the Distributor, as allocated by the Manager as follows, subject to its
absolute discretion.

67
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
8. Management fees (continued)

The management fees are calculated on each Valuation Day, accrued daily and payable in JPY gquarterly in
arrears for Series 2016 Topix Fund, Series 20016 JPX - Nikkei 400 Fund and Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund and
payable in US Dollars quarterly in arrears for Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund.

{a) For Series 2016 Topix Fund, Series 2016 JPX - Nikkei 400 Fund and Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund the
Manager is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Funds a fee at an annual rate of 0.02% of
the NAV of the Sub-Funds. For Series 2018 58P 500 Fund the Manager iz entitled to receive out of
the assetz of the Sub-Fund the following Met Asset Value percentage per Class: Class A - 0.02% and
Class B - 0.04%.

{b) Investrment Manager Fee:

For Series 2016 Topix Fund, Series 2016 IPX - Mikkei 400 Fund and Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund the
Imvestment Manager s entitled to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Fund a fee at annual rate of:
{1} 0.07% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Fund which is
equal to or less than JPY25 billion: (1) 0.06% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the
aggregate NAY of the Sub-Fund which is more than JPY25 billien and equal or less than JPYS0 billlon;
and {[i) 0.05% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate MAV of the Sub-Fund
which Is mare than IPYS0 billlen, provided that the Investment Manager shall be entitled to a
minimum of JPY10,000,000 per annum. For Serles 2018 S&P 500 Fund the Investment Manager is
entitled to recelve out of the assets of the Sub-Fund a fee at annual rate of: {i) 0.11% of the NAV of
the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate MAV of the Sub-Fund which is equal to or less than
USD250 million; (i) 0.10% of the NAY of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAY of the
Sub-Fund which is more than USD250 million and equal or less than USDS00 million; and (i) 0.09%
of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAY of the Sub-Fund which is more than
USDS00 million, provided that the Investment Manager shall be entitled to a minimum of
USD100,000 par annum.

{c) For all Sub-Funds the Distributor is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Fund a fee at an
annual rate of 0.05% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund.

The investment management fees for the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY16,540,928 (30 lune 2019: JPY20,361,646) with IPY11,620,380 (30 June 2019: JPYE,264,100) in
outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
9. Management fees (continued)

The investment management fees for the Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund for the financial year amounted to
IPY26,809,479 (30 June 2019: IPY30.866,252) with JPY17,965,752 (30 June 2019: IPY18,087,202) in
outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

The investment management fees for the Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund for the financial year amounted to
USD364,869 (30 June 2019: USDE3, 826), with USD330,303 (30 June 2019: USDE3,826) In outstanding fees
at the end of the financial year.

The investment management fees for the Serles 2016 IPX — Mikkei 400 Fund for the financial year
amounted to JPY20,870,148 (30 June 2019: JPY22,359,852) with JPY15,314,984 (30 June 2019:
JPY10,622,730) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

10. Trustee fees

Imtertrust Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee”) is entitled to receive out of the assets of
the Sub-Funds, the annual Trustee Fee of USD2,500 payable guarterly in arrears, plus fees for additional
time, disbursernents, out-of-pocket expenses and start-up expenses,

The Trustee fees for the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to JPY379,955 (30 June
2019: IPY316,638) with JPYMIl {30 June 2019: IPYNII) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

The Trustee feas for the Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund for the financlal year amounted to JPY379,955 (30
Jume 2019: IPY316,638) with JPYNII (30 June 2009: IPYNI) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial

year.

The Trustee fees for the Serles 2018 S&P 500 Fund for the financial year amounted to USDE, 744 (30 June
201%: USD?,744) with USDNII (30 June 2019: USDNII) in cutstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

The Trustee fees for the Series 2016 IPX — Nikkel 400 Fund for the financial year amounted to JPY379,955
{30 June 2019: IPY316,638) with JPYNIl (20 June 2019: JIPYNIl) in outstanding fees at the end of the
financial year.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

11. Administrators fees

For Serles 2016 Toplx Fund, Serles 2016 JPX - Nikkel 400 Fund and Serles 2016 Mikkel 225 Fund, State
Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (the "Administrator”) is entitled to receive out of the assets of the
Sub-Funds a fee at annual rate of: (1) 0.07% of the NAV of the Sub-Funds for any portion of the aggregate
WAV of the Sub-Funds which is equal to or less than JPY10 billion; (i) 0.06% of the NAV of the Sub-Funds
for any portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Funds which is more than JPY10 billion and equal or less
than JPY25 billion; (i) 0.05% of the NAY of the Sub-Funds for any portion of the aggregate MAY of the
Sub-Funds which is more than IPY25 billion and equal or less than JPYS0 billion; and (iv) 0.04% of the NAV
of the Sub-Funds for any portion of the aggregate NAVY of the Sub-Funds which is more than JPYS0 billion,
provided that the Administrator shall be entitled to a minimum of JPYT20,000 per month.

The Administrator Fee is calculated on each Valuation Day and shall be accrued daily. The Administrator
Fee is payable in Japanese Yen quarterly in arrears.

The Administrator will be reimbursed by the Sub-Funds for its disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses,

For Series 2018 SEP 500 Fund, State Street Cayman Trust Company, Ltd. (the “Administrator”) is entitled
to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Fund a fee at annual rate of: (i) 0.07% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund
for any portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Fund which iz equal to or less than USD 100 million; (i)
0.06% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Fund which iz more
than USD 100 million and equal or less than USD 250 million; (i) 0.05% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for
any portion of the aggregate NAVY of the Sub-Fund which is more than USD 250 million and egual or lass
than USD 500 million; and {iv) 0.04% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund fior any portion of the aggregate NAV of
the Sub-Fund which is more than USD 500 million, provided that the Administrator shall be entitled to a
minimurm of USD 6,000 per month. The Administrator Fee will be calculated on each Valuation Day and
shall be accrued daily, The Administrator Fee shall be payable in US Dollars quarterly in arrears. The
Administrator will be reimbursed by the Sub-Fund for its disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses.

The Administrator fees for the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to JPYS 687,343
{30 June 2019: IPY9,746,628) with JPY10,588,880 (30 June 2019: IPY9,263,928) in outstanding fees at the
end of the financial year.

The Administrator fees for the Series 2016 MNikkei 225 Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY12,658,352 (30 June 2019: IPY14,661,030) with JPY16,417 546 (30 June 2019: JPY15,008,748) in
outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

11. Administrators fees (continued)

The Administrator fees for the Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund for the financial year amounted wo USD168,223
(30 June 2019: USD42,608) with USD141,100 (30 June 2019: USD42,608) in outstanding fees at the end
of the financial year.

The Administrator fees for the Series 2016 JPX — Mikkei 400 Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY10,027,305 (30 lune 2019: IPY10,577,314) with IPY12. 447,828 (30 June 2019: JPY9.807,072) Iin
outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

12. Custodians fees

For Series 2016 Topix Fund, Series 2016 JPX - Nikkel 400 Fund and Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund, State
Streat Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Custadian™) is entitled to receive out of the assets of the
Sub-Funds a fee at an annual rate of 0.01% of the NAV of the Sub-Funds, provided that the Custodian shall
be entitled to a minimum of JPY 120,000 per month. The Custodian Fee will be calculated each Valuation
Day and shall be acerued daily. The Custodian Fae shall be payable in Japanese Yen guarterly in arrears.

For Serles 2018 S&P 500 Fund, State Street Bank and Trust Company (the "Custodian™) 15 entitled to
recelve out of the assets of the Sub-Fund a fee at an annual rate of 0.01% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund,
provided that the Custodian shall be entitled to a minimum of USD 1,000 per month. The Custodian Fee
will be calculated on each Valuation Day and shall be accrued daily. The Custodian Fee shall be payable in
US Dollars gquarterly in arrears. The Custodian will be relmbursed by the Sub-Fund for its disbursemenis
and out-of-pocket expenses.,

The Custodian fees for the Series 2006 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to JPY10,586,872 (30
Jure 2019: IPY17,674,688) with JPY30,609,634 (30 June 2019: JPY20,645,683) in outstanding fees at the
end of the financial year.

The Custodian fees for the Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund fior the finandial year amounted to JPY3, 068,648
{30 June 2019: JPY3,645,449) with JPY3,066,598 (30 June 2019: IPY690,680) in outstanding fees at the end
of the financial year.

The Custodian fees for the Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund for the financial year amounted to USD266,441 (30
Jume 2019: USD11,813) with USD115,902 (30 June 2019: USD11,813) in outstanding fee:z at the end of
the financial year.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
12. Custodians fees (continued)

The Custodian fees for the Series 2016 JPX — Mikkel 400 Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY3,162,031 (30 June 2019: JPY3,871,562) with JPY4,043,884 (30 June 2019: IPY915,089) in cutstanding
fees at the end of the financial year.

13. License fees

Fees incurred in connection with the reference to a licensed index are paid to the JPX-Mikkei Index 400
licensor, Nikkei 225 Index licensor, S&F 500 Index licenzor and TOPLY Index licensor and borne by the
Sub-Funds,

The License fee for the Series 2016 JPX — Nikkel 400 Fund and the Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund is 0.02% of
the NAY of the Sub-Funds provided that the licensor shall be entitled to a minimum of JPY100,000 per
annum for each of these Sub-Funds, For Series 2018 S&P Fund it iz 0.01% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund. For
the Serles 2016 TOPIX Fund iz (1) 0.01% of the NAVY of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAVY
of the Sub-Fund which is less than JPY10 billien; (i) 0.005% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of
the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Fund which is equal or more than IPY10 billlon and less than IPY50 billion;
{iif) 0.003% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate MAV of the Sub-Fund which s
equal or more than JBYS0 billion and less than JPY100 billion; (iv) 0.002% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for
any portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Fund which is equal or more than IPY100 billlon and less
than JPY300 billion; (v) 0.001% of the NAVY of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAVY of the
Sub-Fund which is equal or more than JPY300 billion and less than JPYS00 billion and (vi) 0.0005% of the
WAV of the Sub-Fund for amy portion of the aggregate MAY of the Sub-Fund which is equal or more than
JPY500 billion, provided that the licensor shall be entitled to a minimum of JPY100,000 per annum.

The License fee will be calculated on each Valuation Day, accrued daily and payable in JPY except Series
2018 S&P 500 Fund, will be payable in US Dollars.

The Licenze fees for the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to JPYE48,967 (30 June
2019: JPY1,180,191) with JPYMIl {30 June 2019: IPYNIl) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

The License feas for the Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund for the financial year amounted to JPY3,682,153 (30
Jure 2019: IPY4, 150,44 1) with JPYMIl (30 June 2019: IPYNI) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial

year.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
13. License fees (continued)

The License fee for the Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund for the financial period amounted to USD29,986 (30
June 2019: USDE,ET78) with USDMIl {30 June 2019: USDNIl) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial

year.

The License fees for the Series 2016 IPX = Nikkei 400 Fund for the financial year amounted to IPY2 832,684
(30 June 2019: JPY2,897,630) with JPYMIl (30 June 2019: JPYNIl) in outstanding fees at the end of the
financial year.

14. Distribution
The Sub-Funds” investments are expected to generate a certain amount of income on a periodic basis.

It is the current Intention of the Manager (althaugh it s under no obligation to do so) to make semi-annual
distributions in February and August for Clazs A, and in May and Nevember for Clazs B of each year to
Unitholders of record of the Sub-Funds on the Business Day immediately preceding the relevant
distribution date.

Distributions may be made out of the net income, realised and unrealised capital gains net of realised and
unrealised losses and capital of the Sub-Funds for the relevant financial year, or in such ather manner as
specified in the Trust Deed. The Manager has complete discretion as to the amount and timing of the
distributions payable to the Unitholders of the Sub-Funds.

However, the Manager will on each occasion consult with the Investment Manager as to the amount of
such distributions and will rely on the Administrator's continuing calculations and information as to the
amount available to be distributed based on the pozsibility of continuing sustainable pay-out amounts on
such semi-annual basis.

All distributions will be paid net of any taxes required to be withheld.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

14. Distribution (continued)

The table below summarises the distribution of the Sub-Funds as at 30 June 2020:

SEF'E-‘:I_ZD'-':: Series 2016 Series 2018 JP){S:I:E;:;:
& S&P 500

Fund Mikkei 225 Fund Fund Fund
Ex-date 1FY' 000 JPY'000 USD’000 JPY 000
01 August 2019 97,783 - - 152 883
01 Novermber 2019 465 457 - .
03 February 2020 4,680 - 626 135,190
01 May 2020 176 54,935 - .
Total distribution 163,104 65,392 626 288,073

The table below summarises the distribution of the Sub-Funds as at 30 June 2019:
5’”"’:';“;: Series 2016 series 2018 JPKSZ::efz;:

es S&P 500
Fund Mikkei 225 Fund Fund® Furnd
Ex-date 1FY' 000 JPY'000 USDYO00 JBY 000
01 August 2018 156,035 - - 140,161
01 Novernber 2018 470 18,191 .
01 February 2019 82,554 - i3 131,611
07 May 2019 52 603 - .
Total distribution 239,611 18,794 88 271,772
*This Subr-Fund launched 27 November 2018,
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
15. Taxation

The Trust and its sub-funds are not subject to any income, withholding or capital gains taxes in the Cayman
Izlands. The only taxes which will be chargeable on the Trust and its Sub-Funds in the Cayman Islands are
nominal amounts payable to the registrar of Sub-Fund.

The Sub-Funds are registered as an exempted trust pursuant to Section 74 of the Trusts Law. The Trustee
has obtained a tax exemption certificate from the Governor-in-Cabinet of the Cayman lslands, which
provides that, for a period of 50 years from the date of the creation of the Sub-Funds, no law that is
thereafter enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax or duty to be levied on income or on capital
assets, gaing, or appreciation or any tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax will apply to amy
property comprised in the Sub-Funds, or to any income arising under the Sub-Funds or to the Trustee or
to the Unitholders in respect of any such property or income. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes
is included in these financial statements.

Unitholders will not be subject to any income, withholding or capital gains taxes in the Cayman lslands,
with respect to the Units owned by them and distributions received on such Units, nor will they be subject
to any estate or inheritance taxes in the Cayman |slands. There are no exchange controls in Cayman.

Dividend and interest income received by the Sub-Funds may be subject to withholding tax imposed in
the country of arigin. Investment income is recorded gross of such taxes.

The Trust and its Sub-Funds have been formed as a unit trust under the Cayman Islands law. The Trust
and its Sub-Funds are assumed to be treated as a foreign investment trust, as a matter of Japanese law,
which is similar to a securities investment trust under the Law concerning Inwestment Trusts and
Investrment Corporations of Japan. Further, it iz anticipated that the Sub-Funds are not listed on any stock
exchange.

The Cayman lslands are not party to any double taxation treaties. Under current Cayman Islands law no
tax will be charged in the Cayman lslands on profits or gains of the Sub-Funds and dividends of the
Sub-Funds will be payable to Unitholders reside in or outside the Cayman lslands without deduction of
tax. Mo stamp duty is levied in the Cayman Islands on the transfer or redemption of Units inthe Sub-Funds.
The Sub-Funds invest in securities issued by entities which are domiciled in countries ather than the
Cayrman Islands.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

15. Taxation (continued)

Mary of these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes are required to be
determined on a self-assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Sub-Funds'
broker on a "withholding” basis.

16. Transactions with related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party to exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decision.

Details of the related party transactions are included in Notes @, 10 and 11.

There are no other related party tranzactions during the financial year,

17. Comparative period

The comparative amounts in these financial statements for Serles 2016 TOPIX Fund, Series 2016 IPX -
Mikkel 400 Fund and Serles 2016 Mikkel 225 Fund are for the financial year ended 30 June 2019. The
comparative amounts for Serles 2018 5&P 500 Fund are for the financial period from 27 Movember 2018
to 30 June 2019,

18. Significant events during the financial year

An outbreak of an infectious respiratery illness caused by a novel coronavirus known as COVID-19 was
first detected in China in December 2019 and has now developed into a global pandemic. The impact of
this significant event on the Trust's financial risk exposure s disclozed in Mote 3. The Investment Manager
has assessed the impact of market conditions arising from the COVID-19 outbreak on the Trust's ability to
meeat its investment objectives. Based on the latest available information, the Trust continues to be
managed in line with its investment objectives, with no disruption to the operations of the Trust and the
publication of net asset values.

There were no other significant events during the financial year.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

19. Post Balance Sheet events

There are no significant events after the financial year end date that would have an impact to the financial
staternents.

20. Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2020 were approved and authorised for
Issue by the Trustee on 18 December 2020,

b
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal 1PY 000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.85% (30 June 2019: 97.69%)
Japan: 97.85% (30 June 2019: 97.69%)
Advertising: 0.27% (30 June 2019: 0.39%)

6,200 Dentsu Growp Inc 15,841 0.14
1,100 Digital Garage Inc 3,773 0.03
8,400 Hakuhodo DY Holdings Inc 10,760 0.10
30,374 0.27
Aerospace & Defense: 0.13% (30 June 2019: 0.11%)
4,500 IHI Corp 7,011 0.06
4,900 Kawasaki Heavy Industries Ltd 7,595 0.07
14,606 0.13
Agriculture: 0.67% (30 June 2019: 0.78%)
36,600 lapan Tobaccoo Inc 73,255 067
73,255 0.67
Airlines: 0.43% (30 June 2019: 0.69%)
10,900 AMA Holdings Inc 26,716 0.24
10,600  lapan Airlines Co Ltd 20,584 0,19
47,300 0.43

Apparel: Nil (30 June 2019: 0.06%)
Auto Manufacturers: 3.88% (30 June 2019: 4.67%)

7,900 Hino Motors Ltd & 751 0,05
48,700 Honda Motor Ca Ltd 136,948 1.25
18,300 Esuzu Motors Ltd 17,811 0,16
18,600 Mazda Mator Corp 12,016 0,11
19,600 Subaru Corp 43,933 0.40
12,500 Suzuki Motor Corp 45,713 0.42
24,200 Toyota Motor Corp 163,640 1.44

425,812 3.88
Auto Parts & Equipment: 2.56% (30 June 2019: 2.98%)

5,200 Alsin Seiki Co Ltd 16,328 0,15
18,200 Bridgestone Corp 63,136 0,58

1,300 Daikyonishikawa Corp 625 0,01
13,900 Denso Corp 58,450 0,53

6,000 ITEKT Carp E.022 0,05

3,800 Eoito Manufacturing Co Ltd 16,492 0.15

7,600 MGEK Insulators Ltd 11,309 0.10

4,800 MGK Spark Plug Co Ltd 7411 0,07

2,300 Mifco Inc 5,288 0,05

4,400 Stanley Electric Co Ltd 11,418 0,10
23,300 Sumitomo Electric Industries Ltd 28,8R0 0.26

5,700 Sumitoma Rubber Industries Ltd 6,053 0,06

1,200 Topre Conp 1,441 0.01

2,000 Toyoda Gosel Co Lbd 4,484 0,04

1,900 Toyota Boshoku Corp 2749 0,03
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS {unaudited) {continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal 1PY 000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.85% (30 June 2019; 97.69%) (continued)
Japan: 97.85% (30 June 2019: 97.69%) (continued)
Auto Parts & Equipment: 2.56% (30 June 2019: 2.98%) (continued)

5,100 Toyota Industries Corp 29,121 0.27
900 TPR Co Ltd 1,206 0,01
1,500 T5 Tech Co Ltd 4,436 0.04
3,600 Yokohama Rubber Co Ltd 5,450 0.05
279,799 255
Banks: 4.35% (30 June 2019: 5.22%)
3,800 AEON Financial Service Co Ltd 4,465 0.04
3,700 Aozora Bank Ltd 6,941 0.06
20,800 Chiba Bank Ltd 10,566 0.10
35,600 Concordia Financial Group Ltd 12,282 0.11
314,000 Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group Inc 132,381 120
845,700 Mizuho Financial Group Inc 111,802 1.02
68,300 Resana Holdings Inc 25,121 0.23
20,300 Sewen Bank Ltd 6,136 0,06
4,600 Shinsei Bank Ltd 54971 0.05
41,700 Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group Inc 126,434 115
11,800  Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc 35,695 0.33
477,794 4.35
Bewverages: 1.18% (30 June 2019: 1.36%)
13,300 Asahi Group Holdings Ltd 50,221 0.46
26,900 Kirin Holdings Ca Ltd 61,184 0.56
4,200 Suntory Beverage & Food Ltd 17,660 0.16
129,065 118
Building Materials: 1.87% (30 June 2019: 1.78%)
6,200 AGC Inc 19,003 0.17
8,000 Draikin Industries Ltd 138,680 1.26
1,700  Michias Corp 3,813 0,03
1,200 Rinnai Corp 10,800 0.10
5,900 Sanwa Holdings Corp 5,676 0,05
4,000 Taiheiya Cement Carp 9,968 0.09
4,500 TOTO Ltd 18,518 0.17
206,458 1.87
Chemicals: 4.21% (30 June 2019: 4.50%)
1,800 Aica Kogyo Co Ltd 6,363 0.06
5,700 Air Water Inc 8670 0,08
41,000  Asahi Kasei Corp 35,900 0.33
8,100 Daicel Corp 6,747 0.06
2,300 Denka Co Ltd 6,065 0,06
2,600 DIC Carp 7,023 0.06
6,900 Kansal Paint Co Ltd 15,684 0.14
9,700 Kuraray Co Ltd 10,913 0.10
41,300 Mitsubishi Chemical Holdings Carp 25,912 0.24
157
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS {unaudited) {continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal 1PY 000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.85% (30 June 2019; 97.69%) (continued)
Japan: 97.85% (30 June 2019: 97.69%) (continued)
Chemicals: 4.21% (30 June 2019: 4.50%) (continued)

5,700 Mitsubishi Gas Chemical Co Inc 9,291 0,08
5,600 Mitsui Chemicals Inc 12,583 0,11
5,100 Mippon Paint Holdings Co Ltd 39,984 0.36
3,400 Missan Chemical Corp 18,768 0,17
4,300  Mitto Denko Corp 26,230 0.24
2,300 MOF Corp 8,579 0,08
10,600 Shin-Etsu Chemical Co Ltd 133,507 1.22
4,400 Showa Denko KE 10,630 0.10
45,400 Sumitoma Chemical Co Ltd 14,619 0,13
5.900 Taiyo Nippon Sanso Corp 10,626 0.10
6,600 Tokai Carbon Co Ltd 6,673 0,06
1,800 Tokuyama Corp 4,558 0.04
44,700 Toray Industries Inc 23,685 021
9,600 Tosoh Corp 14,112 0,13
3,100 Ube Industries Ltd 5741 0,05
461,863 421
Commercial Services: 2.72% (30 June 2019: 2.45%)

2,200 Benefit One Inc 4,763 0,04
1,300 GMO Payment Gateway Inc 14,612 0,13

A00 JAC Recruitment Co Ltd 457 0.00
1,000 Eanamoto Co Ltd 2,355 0,02
4,500 Mihon MEA Center Inc 21,914 0,20
3,400 COutsourcing Inc 2,312 0,02
3,300 Park24 Co Ltd 6,089 0,06
6,000 Persol Holdings Cao Ltd 8,880 0,08

43,200 Recruit Holdings Co Ltd 159,061 144
6400  Secom Co Ltd 60,307 0,55
2,400 Sohgo Security Services Co Ltd 12,048 0,11
1,200 TechnoPro Holdings Inc T.380 0.07

300178 2,72
Computers: 2.33% (30 June 2019: 1.74%)

F00 Elecom Co Ltd 3,682 0,03
6,100 Fujitsw Ltd 76,982 070
2,800 Itochu Techno-Solutions Corp 11,312 0.10
7,600 MEC Corp 39,292 0.36
1,900  Mihon Unisys Ltd 6,394 0.06
8,800 Momura Research Institute Ltd 25,758 0,23

900 M5 Solutions Corp 2,651 0,02

16,500 MTT Data Corp 19,784 0,18
2,200 Obic Co Ltd 41,513 0,38
3,400 Otsuka Corp 19,312 0,18
1,400 SCSK Corp 7336 0.7
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS {unaudited) {continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal 1PY 000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.85% (30 June 2019; 97.69%) (continued)
Japan: 97.85% (30 June 2019: 97.69%) (continued)
Computers: 2.33% (30 June 2019: 1.74%) (continued)

900 UT Group Co Ltd 2,206 0,02
256,222 233
Cosmetics & Personal Care: 2.96% (30 June 2019: 2.98%)

15,100 Eao Conp 128,954 1.17
1,200 Eose Corp 15,552 0,14
8200  Lion Corp 21,213 0.19
3,800 Pigeon Carp 15,546 0,14
2,700 Paola Orbis Holdings Inc 5065 0,05

12 500 Shiseido Co Ltd 85,438 0,78

12,200 Unicharm Corp 53,924 0.49

325,992 296
Distribution & Wholesale: 3.63% {30 June 2019: 4.06%)
500 Daiwabo Holdings Co Lid 3,520 0,03

43,500 ITOCHU Corp 100,985 0,92
2,300 Kanematsu Corp 2,962 0.03

64,700 Marubeni Carp 31,541 0.29

41,000 Mitsubishi Corp 93,070 0.85

£3,800 Mitsui & Co Ltd 85,784 0,78
1,000 PALTAC Corp 4,955 0,05

34,300 Sojitz Corp 8,061 0.7

39,200 Sumitomo Corp 48,392 0.44
6,900 Toyota Tsusho Corp 18,830 0,17

398,100 3.63
Diversified Financial Services: 2.07% (30 June 2019: 2.04%)

49,900 Diaiwa Securities Group Inc 22,440 0.20

1,900 Fimancial Products Group Co Ltd 1,125 001
T00 Fuyo General Lease Co Ltd 4,193 0,04

17,900 lapan Exchange Group Inc 44,607 0.41
3,500 Matsui Securities Co Ltd 2,905 0,03

32,300 Mebulki Financial Group Inc 8075 0.07

15,800 Mitsubishi UF) Lease & Finance Co Ltd 8,058 0.7

109,500  Momura Holdings Inc 52,823 0.48

16,800 Crrient Carp 1,982 0,02

38800 ORI¥ Corp 51,546 0.47
6,900 5B1 Haoldings Inc 16,063 0,15
1,200 Tokyo Century Corp 6,612 0,06
1,700 Zenkoku Hosho Co Ltd 6,885 0,06

227,314 207
Electric: 0.82% (30 June 2019: 0.91%)

19,300 Chubu Electric Power Co Inc 26,094 0,24
5000  Electric Power Development Co Ltd 10,224 0,09

23,900 Kansal Electric Power Co Inc 24,978 0.23

13,000 Eyushu Electric Power Co Inc 11,764 0,11
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS {unaudited) {continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal 1PY 000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.85% (30 June 2019; 97.69%) (continued)
Japan: 97.85% (30 June 2019: 97.69%) (continued)
Electric: 0.82% (30 June 2019: 0.91%) (continued)

15,800 Tothoku Electric Power Co Inc 16,211 0.15
89,269 0.82
Electrical Components & Equipment: 0.30% (30 Jlune 2019: 0.27%)
7.700 Brother Industries Ltd 14,953 0.14
5600  Casio Computer Co Lid 10,472 0.10
1,900 Furukawa Electric Co Ltd 4,957 0.05
1,500 Missin Electric Co Ltd 1572 0.01
31,954 0.30
Electronics: 5.25% (30 June 2019: 4.70%)
5600  Alps Alpine Co Ltd 7,728 0,07
4,000  Azbil Corp 13,140 0.12
1,700  Fujitsu General Ltd 3,752 0,03
1,075 Hirose Electric Co Ltd 12,707 0.12
1,200 Hariba Ltd 6,816 0.06
12,600  Hoya Corp 129,276 1.17
8,900  Kyocera Corp 52,199 0.48
11,700 Minebea Mitsumi Inc 22,850 0.21
18,500 Murata Manufacturing Co Ltd 116,846 1.06
15,200  Midec Corp 109,379 1.00
5700  Omron Corp 41,154 0.38
1,100  SCREEN Haldings Co Ltd 5,533 0,05
2,800  Taiyo Yuden Co Ld 9,366 0.09
3,000  TDK Corp 32,039 0.29
1,100  Tokyo Seimitsu Co Ltd 3,784 0,03
5.800 Yokogawa Electric Corp 9,744 0.09
576,313 5.25
Engineering & Construction: 1.35% (30 June 2019: 1.41%)
3,000  COMSYS Holdings Corp 9,555 0.09
5100  Hazama Ando Corp 3,177 0,03
2,000 lapan Alrport Terminal Co Ltd 9,180 0.08
15500  Kajima Corp 19,902 0.18
Q00 Kumagai Gumi Co Ltd 2,322 0.02
3,000  Kyowa Exeo Corp 7,725 0.07
1,400  Kyudenko Corp 4,452 0.04
4,900  Maeda Corp 4,023 0,04
700 Meitec Corp 3,633 0.03
1,600 Mippo Corp 4,355 0,04
1,500 Mishimatsu Construction Co Ltd 3,215 0.03
19,800  Obayashi Corp 19,958 0.18
7.800 Penta-Ocean Construction Co Ltd 4,516 0.04
20,100  Shimizu Carp 17,789 0.16
4,760 Sumitomo Mitsui Construction Co Ltd 2,228 0.02
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS {unaudited) {continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal 1PY 000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.85% (30 June 2019; 97.69%) (continued)
Japan: 97.85% (30 June 2019: 97.69%) (continued)
Engineering & Construction: 1.35% (30 June 2019: 1.41%) (continued)

6,600 Taisei Carp 25,872 0.24
8,200 Toda Corp 5,699 0,05
2,500 Tokyu Construction Co Ltd 1,395 0,01

148,996 1.35

Entertainment: 0.96% (30 June 2019: 1.02%)
6,400 Oriental Land Co Ltd 91,136 0,83
3,700 Toho Co Lid 14,412 0.13
105,548 0.96

Food: 2.99% (30 June 2019: 3.18%)

14,000  Ajinomato Co Inc 25,088 0.23
GO0 Ariake lapan Co Ltd 4,104 0.04
2,900 Calbee Inc 8,651 0,08
1,100 Create 5D Holdings Co Ltd 3,685 0,03
1,900 Ezaki Glico Co Lid 9,766 0.09
3,500 Eewpie Carp 7,123 0,06
4,600 Kikkoman Corp 23,874 0.22
2,100 Kobe Bussan Co Ltd 12,768 0.12
1,200 Maruha Nichiro Corp 2648 002
4,200 MELI Holdings Co Ltd 36,036 0.33
1,500 Morinaga & Co Ltd 6,278 0,06
2,400 MH Foods Ltd 10,380 0.09
3,000 Michirel Comp 9,405 0.09
8,600 Mippon Suisan Kaisha Ltd 4,025 0.04
2,700 Miszin Foods Holdings Co Ltd 25,785 0.24

24,300 Seven & i Holdings Co Ltd 85536 077
3,300  Toyo Suisan Kaisha Ltd 19,899 0.18
4,400 Yakult Honsha Co Ltd 27,940 0.25

700 Yaoko Co Ltd 5,390 0,05
328381 2499
Forest Products & Paper: 0.18% (30 June 2019: 0.21%)

25,800 0ji Holdings Corp 12,926 0.12

5,000 Sumitomo Forestry Co Ltd 6,765 0,06
19,691 0.18
Gas: 0.52% (30 June 2019: 0.60%)

12,300 Osaka Gas Co Lid 26,174 0.24
12,100  Tokyo Gas Co Ltd 31,18 0.28
57,392 0.52

Hand & Machine Tools: 0.73% (30 June 2019: 0.65%)
7.800 Amada Co Ltd 6,872 0.06
800  Disco Corp 20,872 0.19
3,900 DMG Mori Co Ltd 5,087 0.05
3,800 Fujii Electric Co Ltd 11,187 0,10
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Mominal

Fair Value % of Total
IPY 000 Net Assets

8,200

7,100
1,900
2,600

34,900
7,500
4,500

17,900

3,200

19,600

13,200
21,500

72,100
26,700

1,000

35,200
16,300
11,700

5,100
18,600
22,000

3,700
900

Common Stock: 97.85% (30 June 2019; 97.69%) (continued)

Japan: 97.85% (30 June 2019: 97.69%) (continued)

Hand & Machine Tools: 0.73% (30 June 2019: 0.65%) (continued)

Makita Corp
056G Corp

Healthcare Products: 2.18% (30 June 2019: 1.65%)
Asahi Intecc Co Ltd
lapan Lifeline Co Ltd
Mihon Kohden Carp
Olympus Corp
Shimadzu Corp
Sysmex Corp
Terumo Corp

Healthcare Services: 0.19% (30 June 2019: 0.05%)

Ain Holdings Inc
PeptiDream Inc

Home Builders: 1.28% (30 June 2019: 1.29%)
Diaiwa House Industry Co Ltd
Haseko Corp
lida Group Holdings Co Ltd
Open House Co Ltd
Sekisui Chemical Co Ltd
Sekisui House Ltd

Home Furnishings: 2.41% (30 June 2019: 2.33%)

Panasonic Corp

Sony Corp

Household Products 8 Wares: 0.03% (30 June 2019: 0.04%)

Filat Carp

insurance: 2.47% (30 June 2019: 2.82%)
Diai-ichi Life Holdings Inc
M5EAD Insurance Group Holdings Inc
Sompo Holdings Inc
Sony Financial Holdings Inc
T&D Holdings Inc
Tokio Marine Holdings Inc

Internet: 2.00% (30 June 2019: 1.29%)

CyberfAgent Inc
Dip Carp

32,103 0.29
4,785 0.04
80,915 0.72
21,762 0.20
2,704 0.02
9,425 0.09
72,435 0.66
21,510 0.20
37,035 0.34
73,050 0.67
237,921 218
5,648 0.05
15,808 0.14
21,458 0.18
49,823 0.45
10,457 0.10
8,585 0.08
6,642 0.06
20,354 0.19
44,129 0.40
139,990 128
7,745 0.62
197,153 179
264,898 2.41
3,275 0.03
3,275 0.03
45,162 0.41
48,264 0.44
43,372 0.40
13,235 0.12
17,131 0.16
103,356 0.94
270,520 2.47
19,573 0.18
1,963 0.02
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS {unaudited) {continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal 1PY 000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.85% (30 June 2019; 97.69%) (continued)
Japan: 97.85% (30 June 2019: 97.69%) (continued)
Internet: 2.00% (30 June 2019: 1.29%) (continued)

1,100  En-japan Inc 2,922 0.03
4,500  Kakaku.com Inc 12,280 011
13,300  M3Inc 60,981 0.56
4,400  MonotaRO Co Ltd 19,008 0.17
28,100 Rakuten Inc 26,639 0.24
1,900  SMS Co Ltd 4,592 0.04
2,700 Trend Micro Inc 16,254 0.15
85,000 7 Holdings Corp 44,710 041
4,300  Z0ZO0 Inc 10,303 0.09
219,225 2,00
Iron & Steel: 0.47% (30 June 2019: 0.81%)

6,700 Hitachi Metals Ltd B.596 0,08
16,900  IFE Holdings Inc 13,047 0.12
27,900 Mippon Steel Carp 28,277 0.26

400 Mippon Steel Trading Carp 1,358 0.01
51,278 0.47
Leisure Time: 0.79% (30 June 2019: 0.77%)

1,200 Daiichikosho Co Ltd 3,870 0,04

2,400 Shimano bnc 49,800 0.45

3,700  Yamaha Corp 18,759 0.17

8,200 Yamaha Motor Co Ltd 13,842 0.13

86,271 0.79
Ledging: 0.04% (30 June 2019: 0.04%)
2,800 Resorttrust Inc 3,906 0.04
1,906 0.04
Machinery - Diversified: 5.26% (30 June 2019: 4.96%)

3,200 Daifulou Co Ltd 30,144 0.27

6,000 FANUC Corp 115,560 1.05

1,300  Harmonic Drive Systems Inc 7,683 0.07

4,500 Keyence Corp 202,635 1.85
33,500  Kubota Corp 53,868 044

3,700  Mabtesco Carp 12,284 011

400 Obara Group Inc 1,308 0.01

2,000  SMCCarp 110,360 101

3,600 Sumitomo Heavy Industries Ltd 8442 0.08

3,700  THK Coltd 9,857 0,09

6,800  Yaskawa Electric Corp 25,330 023

577471 5.26
Machinery Construction & Mining: 2.67% (30 June 2019: 3.03%)

2,500 Hitachi Construction Machinery Co Ltd TA50 0.07
30,300 Hitachi Ltd 103,111 0,94
28,600 Komatsu Ltd 63,020 0.57
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS {unaudited) {continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal 1PY 000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.85% (30 June 2019; 97.69%) (continued)
Japan: 97.85% (30 June 2019: 97.69%) (continued)
Machinery Construction & Mining: 2.67% (30 June 2019: 3.03%) (continued)

63,100 Mitsubishi Electric Corp 88,308 0.81
10,600 Mitsubishi Heawy Industries Ltd 26,956 0.25
G600 Modec Inc 916 0.01
1,100 Takeuchi Manufacturing Co Ltd 1,969 0,02
291,730 2,67
Media: 0.06% (30 lune 2019: 0.08%)

5,200 Mippon Television Haldings Inc 6,063 0.06
6,063 0.06

Metal Fabricate & Hardware: 0.28% (30 June 2019: 0.33%)

7800  MISUMI Group Inc 21,013 0.19
11,900 MSK Ltd 9,508 0.09

30,521 0.28
Mining: 0.30% (30 June 2019: 0.44%)

1,600  Dowa Holdings Co Lid 5,337 0,05
15,300 Mippon Light Metal Holdings Co Ltd 2,970 0.03

8,000 Sumitomo Metal Mining Co Ltd 24,072 0,22

32274 0.30
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.19% (30 June 2019: 0.05%)
5,800 ISR Corp 12,064 0.11
9,600 Mikon Corp 8,659 0,08
20,723 0.19
Office & Business Equipment: 0.83% (30 June 2019: 1.21%)
34,000 Canon Inc 72573 0.66
13,800 Konica Minclta Inc 5134 0,05
7,800 Seiko Epson Corp 9,617 0.09
00 Toshiba TEC Corp 3,296 0.03
80,620 0.83
Oil & Gas: 0.72% (30 June 2019: 0.99%)

1,800 Cosmo Energy Holdings Co Ltd 1,826 0,03
94,900 EMEDS Holdings Inc 36,252 0,33

7,000 Idemitsu Kosan Co Ltd 16,009 0.15
34,400 Inpex Corp 22,341 0.21

78,028 0.72
Pharmaceuticals: 8.05% (20 June 2019: 6.70%)

6,900 Alfresa Holdings Corp 15,532 0.14
54,700 Astellas Pharma Inc 98,433 0.90
19,800  Chugai Pharmaceutical Co Lid 114,147 1.04
18,100 Daiiichi Sankyo Co Ltd 159,388 144

7.500 Eksai Co Ltd 64,095 0.58

1,700 Hisamitsu Pharmaceutical Co Inc 9,877 0.09

1,100 Kaken Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 6,061 0.06

1,800 Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 17,064 0.16
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)

As at 30 June 2020
Fair Value % of Total
Mominal 1PY 000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.85% (30 June 2019; 97.69%) (continued)
Japan: 97.85% (30 June 2019: 97.69%) (continued)
Pharmaceuticals: 8.05% (20 June 2019: 6.70%) (continued)
6,400 Kyowa Kirin Ca Ltd 18,106 0.17
6,700 Medipal Holdings Corp 13,909 0,13
1,700 Mippon Shinyaku Co Ltd 14,309 0.14
14,500 Ono Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 45,487 0.41
12,000 Otsuka Holdings Co Ltd 56,388 0.51
11,8040 Santen Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 23,399 0.21
1,300 Sawai Pharmaceutical Co Ltd T.202 0.07
8000  Shionogi & Co Ltd 54,000 0,49
1,000 Ship Healthcare Holdings Inc 4,485 0.04
4,700 Sumitomo Dainippon Pharma Co Ltd T.003 0,06
40,300 Takeda Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 155,074 141
584,559 8.05
Pipelines: 0.03% (30 June 2019: Nil)
3,300 TOKAI Holdings Corp 3,280 0.03
3,280 0.03
Real Estate: 2.24% (30 June 2019: 2.89%)
3,100 Aeon Mall Co Ltd 4,433 0.04
2,200 Daito Trust Construction Co Ltd 21,800 0.20
13,000 Hulic Co Lid 13,156 0,12
7,900 lchige Inc 2,133 0,02
43,600 Mitsubishi Estate Co Ltd 69,869 0.64
30,700 Mitsui Fudosan Co Ltd 58,622 0.53
3,800 Momura Real Estate Holdings Inc 7,600 0.07
1,000 Pressance Corp 1,185 0.01
3,300 Relo Group Inc 6,692 0.06
800  Starts Corp Inc 1,766 0.02
14,000 Sumitomao Realty & Development Co Ltd 41,482 0.38
6,600 Tokyo Tatemono Co Ltd 8,158 0,07
16,900 Tokyu Fudosan Holdings Corp 8518 0.08
245,414 2.24
Retail: 3.93% (30 June 2019: 2.81%)
1,000 ABC-Mart Inc 6,310 0.06
23,900 Ason Co Ltd 53,870 0.55
3,700 Bic Camera Inc 4,225 0.04
GO0 Cosmaos Pharmaceutical Corp 9,924 008
5,000 FamilyMart Co Ltd 9,245 0,08
800 Fast Retailing Co Ltd 43,360 0,45
1,100 Galdwin Inc T. 744 0.07
1,400 Iwatani Corp 5,278 0,05
1,300 lzumi Cio Ltd 4,433 0,04
7400 | Frant Retailing Co Ltd 5,313 0.05
1,400 KOMEDA Holdings Co Ltd 2,561 0,02
6,000  K's Holdings Corp 8,808 0,08
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS {unaudited) {continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal 1PY 000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.85% (30 June 2019; 97.69%) (continued)
Japan: 97.85% (30 June 2019: 97.69%) (continued)
Retail: 3.93% (30 June 2019: 2.81%) (continued)

S00 Eusuri no Acki Holdings Co Ltd 4,230 0,04
1,600 Lawson Inc 8,656 0,08
5. 700 barui Group Co Ltd 11,082 0.10
2,600 Matsumotokiyoshi Holdings Co Ltd 10,179 0,09
2,600 McDonald's Holdings Co Japan Lid 15,132 0.14
2,700 Mitori Holdings Co Ltd 57,038 0,52
1,100 Majima Corp 2,993 0,03

13,700 Pan Pacific International Holdings Carp 32,455 0.30
8,300 Ryohin Keikaku Co Ltd 12,658 0,12
1,500 Seria Co Ltd & 753 0,05

700 Shimamura Co Ltd 5,110 0,05
7,000 Skylark Holdings Co Ltd 11,977 0,11
1,200 Sugi Holdings Co Ltd 8,760 0,08
2,300 Sundrug Co Ltd 8211 0.a7
1400 Tsuruha Holdings Inc 20,790 0,19

F00 United Armrows Ltd 1,275 0,01
6,700 US55 Co Ltd 11,544 0,11
1,900 Woelcia Holdings Co Ltd 16,511 0,15

G600 Workman Co Ltd 5681 0.05
3,000 Zensho Holdings Co Ltd 6,528 0.06

429,644 343

Semiconductors: 1.97% (30 June 2019: 1.00%)
4,700 Advantest Corp 28,764 0,26
4,500 Hamamatsu Phatonics KK 21,015 0,19
2,800 Lasertec Corp 28,448 0,26
30,200 Renesas Electronics Corp 16,640 0.15
7400 SUMCO Corp 12,203 0,11
4,000 Tokyo Electron Ltd 105,760 0,96
1,200 Uhvac Inc 3,732 0,03
300 V Technalogy Co Ltd 1,007 0,01
217,659 1.47

Software: 1.08% (30 June 2019: 0.80%)

200 Akatsuki Inc 765 001
2,900 Capcom Co Ltd 11,368 0.10
2,000 COLOPL Inc 1,966 0,02
2,700 DeNA Co Ltd 3,629 0,03
1,550 GungHo Online Entertainment Inc 2,979 0.03
2,200 Eonami Holdings Corp 7598 0.7
1,500 Bl Imc 2,854 0,03

17,300 Mexon Co Ltd 42,160 0,38
1,300 Oracle Corp Japan 16,536 0,15
2,600 Square Enix Holdings Co Ltd 14,144 0,13
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS {unaudited) {continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal 1PY 000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.85% (30 June 2019; 97.69%) (continued)
Japan: 97.85% (30 June 2019: 97.69%) (continued)
Software: 1.08% (30 June 2019: 0.80%) (continued)

6200  TiSInc 14,099 0.13
118,398 1.08
Telecommunications: 5.57% (30 June 2019: 5.78%)

GO0 Hikari Tsushin Inc 14,730 0.13
45400  KDDICorp 146,824 1.35
63,000 Mippon Telegraph & Telephone Corp 158,477 144
44,300 NTT DoCoMo Inc 127,673 116
29,700  SoftBank Group Corp 161,865 148

600  T-Gaia Corp 1,219 0,01

610,783 5.57
Textiles: 0.08% (30 June 2019: Nil)
5,000 Teijin Ltd 8570 0,08
2,570 0.08
Toys & Games: 2.07% (30 June 2019: 1.59%)
6,500 Bandai Namco Haoldings Inc 36,836 0.34
3,900 Mintendo Co Ltd 187,239 1m
2,800  Tomy Coltd 2,380 0,02
226,455 207
Transportation: 4.30% (30 June 2019: 5.18%)
5,200 Central Japan Railway Co 86,788 0.79
11,100  East Japan Railway Co 82,961 0.76
8000  Hankyu Hanshin Holdings Inc 29,160 0.27
1,100  Hitachi Transport System Ltd 3,168 0,03
3,500  Keihan Holdings Co Ltd 16,818 0.15
3,300  Keio Corp 20,328 0.19
4,400  Keisei Electric Rallway Ca Ltd 14,850 0.14
6,000  Kintetsu Grouwp Holdings Co Ltd 29,070 0.27
6,500 Magoya Railroad Co Ltd 13,793 0.18
2,100 Mippon Express Co Ltd 11,718 0,11
9,400  Odakyu Electric Railway Co Ltd 24,919 023
1,700  Sankyulnc 6,885 0,06
8400  Seibu Holdings Inc 9,836 0.09
2,700 Sotetsu Holdings Inc I 0.07
6,600  Tobu Railway CaLtd 23,529 0.1
15900  Tokyu Corp 24,120 0.22
5,600 West lapan Railway Co 33,8538 0.31
10,500  Yamato Holdings Co Lid 24,465 0.22
470,037 430
Total Common Stock 10,733,066 97.85
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)

As at 30 June 2020
Open Futures Contracts®: (0.07)% (30 June 2019: 0.00%)
Mo of Average cost Unrealised Loss % of Total
contracts price JPY'000 Net Assets
166 14,523 JPN-K400 Index Futures September 2020 (7,561) (0.07)
Total Unrealised loss on Futures Contract (7,961) {0.07)
Fair Value % of Total
1PY"000 Met Assets
Total investments at fair value through profit or loss 10,725,105 97.78
Cash and cash equivalent 156,465 1.43
Cash at broker 97,318 0.89
Other azsets and liabilities (9,889) (0.10)
Met assets attributable to equity unitholders 10,968,999 100.00

*The broker for Futures Contracts is Mizuho Securities Singapore.
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2020 10

11,079,024,231

17,159,023

11,061,865,208

789,400

14,013.00
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2020 10
2,500 26 1,500
25,000,001 25,000,000

2007 11
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AIFMD FCA

2020 10

21 1,711

357

17 2,722
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2019 12 31
2019 2018

13 13,661,742 1,429,018 15,039,799 1,573,163
14 6,637,394 694,271 1,366,872 142,975
20,299,136 2,123,290 16,406,671 1,716,138
15 (6,041,154) (631,905) (2,531,571) (264,802)
14,257,982 1,491,385 13,875,100 1,451,335
14,257,982 1,491,385 13,875,100 1,451,335
16 25,000,002 2,615,000 25,000,002 2,615,000
34,864 3,647 34,864 3,647
(10,776,884) (1,127,262)  (11,159,766)  (1,167,312)
14,257,982 1,491,385 13,875,100 1,451,335

2020 22

2020 22
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J.P.

2019 12 31
2019 2018

6 9,460,856 989,606 2,298,136 240,385

6 (5,281,301) (552,424)  (1,829,170) (191,331)

(3,807, 165) (398,229)  (3,471,754) (363,145)

7 2,193 229 33,904 3,546

374,583 39,181 (2.,968,884) (310,545)

103,410 10,817 117,398 12,280

(8,500) (889) (18,674) (1,953)

10 469,493 49,109 (2,870, 160) (300,219)
11 (86,611) (9,060)

382,882 40,049 (2,870, 160) (300,219)

2018

2018 2018
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J.P.

2019 12 31

o 25,000,002 2,615,000 34,864 3,647  (8,289,606)  (867,093) 16,745,260 1,751,554
(2,870,160)  (300,219) (2,870,160)  (300,219)

2018 12 31
25,000,002 2,615,000 34,864 3,647  (11,159,766) (1,167,312) 13,875,100 1,451,335
382,882 40,049 382,882 40,049

2019 12 31

25,000,002 2,615,000 34,864 3,647 (10,776,884) (1,127,262) 14,257,982 1,491,385
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J.P.
Jp
JpP
E14 5JP 25
FCA
FCA
101 FRS 101
FRS 101 EU
IFRS
2006
FRS 101 EU IFRS
IFRS 45(b)
46 52
1AS 38 1AS
I1AS 79(a) (1v)
IFRS 1AS 16
1AS
1AS 30 31
IAS 24 17 1AS 24

IAS 24
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FVOCI FVTPL

4.9.3

ECL

ECL
12

ECL
( ) ECL

ECL SICR
SICR
JP

ECL PD
LGD EAD IFRS

IFRS ECL

4.10

a)
b)

4.11
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IFRS
2019 2018
3,227,052
6,233,804 2,298,136
9,460,856 2,298,136
5,281,301 1,829,170
4,179,555 468,966
JP

2019 2018
2,193 33,904

2019 2018
103,410 117,398

2019 2018

239/299



10

498,626

833,906

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

8,500 18,674
2019 2018
98,509 83,430
23,263 28,680
1,538,626 1,625,099
267,990 262,064
149,485 154,951
299,742 278,572
2018
2018 540,332 595,644 2018
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2019 2018
86,611
86,611
19
2019 2018
469,493 (2,870,160)
89,204 (545, 330)
623 14,582
(3,216)
530,748
86,611
2019 2018
28,080 34,318
381 742
4,355
3 3
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2006
2019 200,000 2006
13
JP
14
2019 2018
6,637,394 1,366,872
JP 3,227,052 (2018 : )
15
2019 2018
4,836,731 1,455,104
1,092,063 1,076,467
22,840
89,520
6,041,154 2,531,571
JP 1,017,347 2018

543,543
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16
2019 2018
2018 2 2
25,000,000
2018 25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000
25,000,002 25,000,002
17
2019 101,409 2018 104,923
18
JpP 2015
19 2018 15
LTIP LTIP 2019 12 31
75 2018 86 2022 LTIP
LTIP
LTI
RSU RSU
50 50

RSU

243/299



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

RSU RSU

RSU SAR

2018 2019

2019 12 31 113.7 2018 110.72
299,742 2018 278,572

19

2020 CovID-19 JP

COVID-19
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Balance sheet

3 December Frick] 2018
Note 5 5

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 13 13,661,742 15,039,795

Dedtors 14 66T 384 1,386,872

20,209,136 16,406,671

Current Habilities

Crediiors: amounts falling due within onae year 15 (6.041,154) (2.531,571)

Met current assets 14,257 382 13,875,100

Mot assots 14,257 962 13,875,100

Equity

Called-up shane capital 18 25,000,002 25.000,002

Olher reserves 34,864 34,064

Accumulated ksses (10,776 BE4) (11,158,766)

Total equity 14,257 982 13,875,100

The notes on pages 20 - 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 17 - 27 were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 April 2020 and signed on its behalf

by:

I RAN

Matthew Melling
Director

Date: 22 April 2020

S8
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Income statement
Year ended 31 December 013 2018
Note § ]
Dperating moome B 8,460 858 2,268,136
Operating expanse L] {6,281,301) [1.829,170)
Administralive expenses (3807, 165) {3.471,754)
Crthar incaimss 7 2183 33,804
Orperating profit{loss) 74,583 {2,588 884)
Interés! and similas income -] 103,410 117,358
Indovest eocpense and similar chavges ! g {B,500) [1B574)
Profiv{loss) before income tax 10 485 43 {2.870,160)
incame tax expense 1 @esy =
Profitiloas) for the financial yoar plrd T (2,870, 180)

Statement of comprehensive income

There wen no other items of comprehensive Incoma of expense olhar than the profit'(loss) for the financial year shown above (2018:
Fnil). As a result, profit (2018: loss) for the financial year represants tolal comprehensive income (2018; expense) for the year,

The noles on pages 20 - 27 form an integral part of thess financial statemants.

7 -
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Called-up Other Accumulated

shane capital PESEFVES losses Total equity

5 § H §

Balance as at 1 January 2018 25,000,002 i BE4 {8,288, 60E) 16,745,260
Loss for the financial year - = (2.870,160) (2. 870,160)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 25,000,002 34,864 (11,158, 768) 13,875,100
Profil for the financial yaar — — 382 Ba2 382 882
Balance as at M1 December 2019 25,000,002 34864 (10,776 B84) 14,257 982

Crihver reserves relale to share based payment awards granted to employees by the Company.

The notes on pages 20 - 27 form an integral part of these financial statemenis.

-19 -
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements

1. General information

The Company is a prvale limited company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales. The Company’s immediate pareni
undertaking is The Bear Stearns Companies LLC, incarporated in the state of Delaware in the Undled States of Amenca ("U.5.") The
Company's ullimate parent undertaking, and the paren! undertaking of the only group in which the resulls of the Company are
consolidated, is JPMorgan Chase & Co. (the “Firm® or “JPMorgan Chase”}, which Is incorporated in the state of Delaware in the
U.5. The consolidated financial statermenis of the Firm can be obtained from the Company's registered office at 25 Bank Street,
Canary Wharf, London, E14 5JF, England.

Principal activities

The Company is an assel management company which provides risk managemeni and stralegic assel management services 1o
clients, The Company promates, launches and manages funds, investments and other investment solulisns in line with its regulatory
permissions as set by the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCAT), The Company is authorized and regulated by the Financial Conduct
Authority "FCA").

1. Basis of preparation

These financial stalerments have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101, "Reduced Disclosure
Framework” ("FRS 101"} FRS 101 applies the recognition and measurement requirements of International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the Eurcpean Union ("EU") with reduced disclosures.

The financial staternents have been prepared on a going concern basis under the hisloreal cost convention and in sccordance with
the Companies Act 2006,

Thia following exemplicns frem the requirements of IFRS as adopled by the EL have been applied in the preparabion of these knancial
staternents, in accordance with FRS 101

+  Ceriain share based paymen! disclosures in respect of Group equity instruments (IFRS 2, “Share-based payment’
paragraphs 45(b) and 45 1o 52);

= Comparative information disclosures (paragraph 38 of LAS 1, "Presentation of financial statements’ ("IAS 17) for
recanciliation of share capital (paragraph T8(ajiv) of IAS 1);

+  Statement ol compliance o IFRS (paragraph 16, 1AS 1);
Cash flow statement and related notes (lAS T Cash flow statements);

= Disclosures in relation 1o new or revised standards [ssued bul not yet effective (paragraph 30 and 31, 1AS 8 "Accounting
polices, changes in accounting estimates and ermors’);

*  Hey management compensation disclosures (paragraph 17, LAS 24 'Related Party Disclosures’ (LAS 247));
= Relaled party transactions with wholly owned group undertakings (lAS 24).

3.  Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements generally requenes management 1o make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
thie amounts recagnised in the financial statements. Due fo the nature of Company’s business and balances, no significant accounting
estimates or judgements were required in preparation of these financial statements,

4.  Significant accounting policies

The feilowing are the significant accounting policies applied in the preparatron of these financial statements. These policies have
been applied consistently in each of the years presented, unless otherwise siated.

4.1 Forelgn currency translation

Mosnitary assets and monetary Tabilites in fofsgn CUmendies are translated into United States ["U.S.") dallars al rates of exchange
ruling on the balance shee! date. Income and expense ems denominaled in foreign currendies are translated into U5, dollass at
exchange rates prevailing at the date of the fransactons, Any gaing of losses ansing on franslation are taken directly o the income
ataterment.

MNon-monetary lems denominaled inforeign currencies that ase stated at historical cost ane translated imbo U5, dollars at the exchange
rate ruling at the date of the fransacton.

4.2 Functional and presentation currency
[tems. included in the financial statemants of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary etonomic envirenmend

in which the entity operates (the “funclienal currency’}. U.S. dollars i considered as the fenchional and presentation currency of the
Company.

=20 -
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)

4.3 Income and expense recognition

Asset management foas

This revenue calegory includes fees from invesimen! managemen! and related services,

Invesimen! management fees are typically based on the value of assets under management and are collected and recognised at
the end of each period over which Ihe management services are provided and the valee of the managed assels is known. The
Company has contraciual arrangements with third parties for providing distribution and other services in connection with its asset
management activities,

Amounis paid to third-party sarvice providers are recorded in operating expenses under fund related expense. Operaling expenses
include, but not limited to custody costs, setilement and exchange fees, regulatory fees, administrative, audit or legal fees. Expenses
are recognised when the underying contract becomes legally binding o at the agreed due date if laler.

Income from Access agreement:

The Company has contractual arangements with another Group entity Tor providing services in the form of principal manager and
of imvestiment manager for cerain investment structure and 1o assist with the indtial preparations. of such products, [ncome from this
agreement is arrived by Group enlity recouping cerain fixed cosis as defined in the agreement and expenses incurred lowards
eslablishing the Fund subject to the Emits prescribed therain.

4.4 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or consiructive cbligation as a result of past events, i is probabla
that an outflow of economic benefits will be regquired to settle the obligation, and a raliable astimate of the amount of the obligation
can be made.

4.5 Pensions and other post-retirement benefits
The Company operates a defined contribulion scheme for its employees.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays a defined level of contributions. Obligations for
coniributions lo defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense and charged 1o the income statement on an accrual
bagis

4.6 Share-based payment awards

Share-based payment awards may ba made lo employees of the Company under the Firm's incentive awards schemes. The fair
value of any such shares, nighls 1o shares or share oplions is measured when the conditional award is made. This value is recognised
as the compensalion expense to the Company over the period to which the pedarmance criteria relate together with employer's
social security expenses or other payroll taxes, All of the awards granted are equity sellied. The Company estimates the level of
forfeitures and applies this forfeiture rate at the grant date,

Additionadly, the conditions that must be satshied before an employes becomes enfithed to equity instruments under the Farm's
incentive programs iz laken into consideration. The Firm's Retirement ENgibility rules for restnicted stock awarded a8 part of ncentive
programs require the acceleration of the amontisation of the award such that the award is fully expensed at the time the retwement
eligibility comes info force.

4.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis include cash and balances at banks and loans and advances to banks with maturities of three months
or less,

4.8 Current and deferred income tax

Income tax payable on taxable profits (current tax) is recognised as an expense in the period in which the profits arise. Income tax
recoverable on tax allowable losses is recognised as a current tax asset only 1o the extent that it is regarded as recoverable by offset
againg! laxable profits ansing in the curtent of preor peniod. Cufrent tax is measured using 1ax rales and lax laws thal have been
enacled or substantively enacted al the balance sheet date.

Dweferred tax is provided in full, using the Eability method, on temparary differences arising from the differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements, Deferred tax is determined using iax rates and
legisiation enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date, which are expacted to apply when the deferred lax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred 1ax assets and liabilities are only offset when there is both a legal right and
an intention o setie on a nat basis.

21
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4. Significant accounting pelicies (continued)

4.9 Financial instruments

4.9.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities

i Recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company recognises financial asseis and financial liabilities when it becomes a parly to the coniraciual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assels are recognised on the rade-date, which is the date on which the
Company commits o purchase of sell an assel

ii. Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

On indtial recognition, financial assets are classified and measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
or fair value through profit or koss. The classification is based on both the business model for managing the financial assets and
their contractual cash flow charactesistics, Faclors considered by the Company in determining the business model for a group of
assels include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collecied, how the assels’ perfformance is evaluated
and reporied to key managemen! personnel, how rsks are assessed and managed, and how managers are compeansabed.

On initial recognition, financial lisbdities are classified as measured al either amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss.
a) Financial assets and financial kabilites measured al amodised cost

Financial assels are measured at amortised cost if they are held under a business model with the objective lo collect contractual
cash flows ("Hold to Collect”) and they have conlractual terms under which cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI"). In making the SPPI assessment, the Company considers whather the contraclual cash flows are consistent with a basic
tending arrangement (i.e,, imerest includes only conssderation for the time value of money, credit nsk, other basic lending risks and
a profit margin that is consislent with a basic lending anrangement), Where the contraciual terms introduce exposure (o nsk or volatility
that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement. the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considerad in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows
are sclely payment of principal and interest. As a result of the application of these criteria, only debd financial assets are eligible to
be measured at amorised cosl.

Financial assets measured al amortised cost include cash and cash equivalents and debtors.

Financial kabilties are measwred at amortised cost unless thay are heldd for trading or a designaled as measured at fair value through
profit or loss. Most of the Company's financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities measured at amordised
cost include trade creditors and accruals.

Financial assets and financial liabfities measured at amorised cost are initially recognized at fair valwe including transaction cosis,
The initial amount recognised s subsequently reduced for principal repayments and for accrued inferest using the effective interest
methad. In addition, the carrying amount of financial assets is adjusted by recognising an expecied credil loss allowance through
the profit or loss,

The effective interest method is used 1o allocate inferest income or interest axpense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rala is the rate that discounis estimated fulure cash payments or recaipls through the expacted life of the financial asset or financial
liability or a shorter period when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or inancial liability. The effective interest
rale is established on initial recognitien of the financial asset or financial liability. The calculaton of the effective interest rate includes
all fees and commissions paid or received, fransaction costs, and discounts of premeums that are an integral part of the effective
imerest rate. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly atinibutable to the acquisition, issuance or disposal of a financial
asset or financial liability,

Gasns and losses ansing on the disposal of financial assels measuned al amortised o8t ane recognised in 'trading profit’ of other
nen inlerest revenue as relevant,

4.9.2 Interest income and interest expense

Unless & financial agsel is credi-empaired, interest income i recognised by apphing the efective interest method to the caffyng
amount of a financial asset before adjusting for any allowance for expected credit losses. If a financial asset is credit-impadred,
interest income is recognised by applying the efflective interest rale to the carrying amount of the financial asset including any
allewance for expected credit losses,

Inlerest @xpense on financial liabilities is recognised by applying the effactive interest method to the amortised cost of financial
liabdities

Interest income and expense on fnancial assels and hinancial kabilties measured al amortised cost and FYOCH are presented
separately from financial ingtrurnents measured at amonised cost and FYTPL respectively.

.22

250/299



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4. Significant accounting policies (continuad)

4.9 Financial instruments (continued)

4.9.3 Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises ECL for financial assels that are measured at amortised cost.

Provisions for ECL are recognised on initial recognition of the financial instrument based on expectations of credit losses at that
time. The credit loss allowance includes ECLs for financial instruments that may default in the next 12-month pertiod for financial
instrements that have nol observed a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition ("stage 17) or over a lifetime pericd
for financial instruments that have observed a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition ("stage 2°). The allowance
also includes lfatime ECLs for financial instruments where there is objective avidenca of credit-impairment at the reporing date
{"slage 3°). In determining the appropriate stage for a financial instrument, the Company applies the definition of default consistent
with the Basel definition of defaull to maintain unifesmity of the definition across the Ferm,

The determination of the stage for credit losses under ihe ECL model is dependent on the measurement of a significant increase in
credit risk {'SICR’). In determining SICR, the Company has conducted quantitative tests, which considers, but is not limited to, existing
risk management indicators, credit rating changas and reasonable and supporiabde forward-looking information. Forward-looking
infermation reflects a range of scenarios that incorporate macro-economic factors that are composed and monitored by JPMaorgan
Chase’s firm-wide specialised sconomic forecasling leam.

The key input componenis for the quantification of expected credit koss through the ECL model includes the probability of default
("PD"), loss given default "LGD") and exposure at defaull ("EAD"). The Company seeks o efficienlly and effectively laverage as
minth 45 possible existing regulatory and capital frameworks where overlap is present for IFRS 9. Differences observed between
conlent in exksting frameworks and requirements under IFRS 9 have been identified and are adjusied accordingly, The inpuls to the
ECL model caplure historical dalasels and a reagonable and supportable forecasting horizon to estimate expecled credit logses.
410 Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the assel has expired, or has been transferred
with either of the following conditions met:

a) the Company has transferred substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the asset; or

b} the Company has neither retained nor transfermed substantially all of the risks and rewards; but has relingquished control of tha
aszel,

Financial labdilies are derecognised when they are extinguished, that is when the oblgation 5 discharged, cancelled or expires.,
4.11 Share Capital

The ghare capital of the Company congists of ordinary shares, classified ag equity.

5.  Segmental analysis

The Company is net in scope of IFRS 8 "‘Operating segments’, as ils debl or equity instruments are not iraded on a public market,
therefore segmental analysis of the Company's revenue and assels is nol necessary.

6. Operating income and expense

2019 018

] %

Access Agreement fees 3227052 -
Assel management Tees

Irviestment management fees 6,233 B04 2,398,136

9,460,858 2,298,136

Fund costs 15,261,301) {1.829,170)

4,175,555 468,966

=23
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)

& Operating income and expense (continued)

Investment managemend fees represents fees for risk management and strategic asset management services, via its fund solutions
business. Currant year income includes fees of 33,227,052 (2018: $nil) from other JPMorgan Chase undertakings pertaining 1o the
Access Agreament. Fund costs includes operating cosis paid by the Company on behalf of the funds. This amangement may include
payment of all the expenses or those expenses exceeding specific bmil which has been agreed upon.The Company has disclosed
aperating income instead of turmover as this reflects more accurately the results and nature of the Company's activites.

7. Other income

2018 2018
§ $
Forsign exchange lranslaton gain 2,193 33,904
8. Interest and similar income
2019 2018
3 $
Interest and similas income:
Financial insliruments ai amorised cost 103,410 147,358
9.  Interest expenses and similar charges
2019 2018
4 §
IFtEres! expendes and Similar charges:
Financial instruments al amonised cosl 8,500 18,674
10. Profit{loss) belore income tax
2019 018
5 ]
Profit{loss) before income tax is sialed after charging
Muditors’ remunaration fior the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements 98 S0 B3.430
Aundit-relabed S3surancs Services 23,263 2B/680
\Wages and salanies 1530 606 1,625 058
Socis seourity costs 267,550 262,064
Orhers pansion and benafit costs 145 485 154,851
Share based payments. 268,742 278,572

The average monthly number of persons providing services to the Company during 1he year was 6 (2018: 6).
Administrative expenses include professional fees of $833, 908 (2018: §540 332), other expenses of $585 844 (2018: $4593,626)

11. Income tax expense

2018 2018
] L1
(a) Analysis of tax charge for the year
Current taxation
UK Corporation tax en profit{loss) for the year BE.611 -
Total lax expense for the year BEE1T —

=24 -
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)

11. Income tax expense (continued]
{b) Factors affecting the current tax charge for the year

The tax charge for the year is same as the standard rale of corporation lax in the UK 19% (2018 19%). The differences are
explained below:

e 2018
§ §
Profitloss) bedore income tax 469,493 (2,670,160)
Prafit(less) befora income tax multiplied by standard rate of UK corporation tax 10% (2018: 18%) B9, 204 (545,330)
Effecis of:
Non deductible expanses 623 14,582
Income net taxable {3.218) -
Loss surrendened Tor nil considerabion - 530,748
Tolal tax expense Tor the year 86,611 -
12. Directors' emoluments and staff costs
2019 2018
$ $
Effsluimsfts” 28,080 34 318
Total comributions 1o & defined comribution plan kL T4z
Total value of long term incentive plans (LTIPs) (incheding deferred cash) for all directors - 4,355
Number of direclors with shares received or recaivable under LTIPs 3
Mumber of direcion bs wham defined contribution pension mghts accmned 3 3

“The amounts shown above in respect of emoluments paid 1o direclors exdude amounts paid or due lo direclors under long term
incantive plans, the value of share oplions granted or exercised and benefits to which directors are entitled under any pension
schemes.

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006, the directors’ emoluments above represent the proportion paid or payable in
raspect of qualifying services only. Directors also received emoluments for non-gualifying services, which are not required to
be disclosed

Highest paid director

For 2018, the emoluments of the highest paid director is under E200,000 which is not required to be disclosed under the requirements
of the Companies Act 2008. '

13. Cash and cash equivalents

All cank balances are held with JPMorgan Chase underiakings.

14. Debtors
2019 2018
] $
Trade debicrs 5,637,394 1,366 872

Trade debtors includes balance owed by JPMorgan Chase undertaking of 53,227,052 (2018: Snil).

- 25.
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

15. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

019 2018

5 §

Trace crediors 4 836,731 1,455,104
Accraals 1,062 063 1,078 467
Barik overdraft 22,840 -
T liabilities 858,520 —
6,041,154 2,531,571

Creditors: amounts faling due within one year includes balances owed to JPMorgan Chase undertakings of $1.017,347 (2018:
£543 543)

16. Called-up share capital

2019 2018
§ 5

Issued and fully paid share capital
1 {2018; 1) Ordinary share of £1 2 2
25,000,000 (2018: 25,000,000) Ordinary shares of £1 each 25,000,000 25,000,000
25,000,002 25,000,002

17. Pension costs

The Company particapates in a defined contribution pensicn schems in the United Kingdom.

The Company recorded a total pension expense of $101,409 for the year 2018 (2018; $104,923).
18. Share based payments

Employee stock-based awards

The ultimate parent of the Company, JPMorgan Chase & Co. (the "Firm”) has granted long-term stock-based awards to cenain key
emphoyeas under its LTIP {Long Term Incentive Plan), as amended and restated effective May 18,2015 and further amended and
rastated effective May 15, 2018, Under the terms of the LTIP, as of 31 December 2018, 75 million shares of common stock were
available fof issuance through May 2022 (2018: 85 milkon shates). The LTIP is the only active plan under which the Firm is currantly
granting siock-based incentive awards. In the following discussion, the LTIP, plus prior Firm plans and plans assumed as the resuft
of acquisitions, are referred 1o collectively as the "LTI Plans” and such plans constitute the Firms's stock-based incentive plans

The Firmn separately recognises compensation expense for sach tranche of each award as if il were a separate award with its own
vesting date. For each tranche granted, compensalion expense is recognised in Ene with how awards vest from the grant date until
the vasting date of the respective tranche, provided that the emplayees will rat became full-cateer eligible during the vesting pesiod.
For awards with full-career elegibility provisions and awards granted with no future substantive service requirement, the Firm accrues
the estimated value of awards expected to be awarded to employees as of the grant date without giving consideration o the impact
of post-employment restriclions. For each tranche granted 1o empioyees who will become full-career eligible during the westing
pericd, compensation expense is recognised in lime with how awards vest from the grant date until the earlier of the employee’s full-
career aligibility date or the vesling dale of the respectiva tranche.

Restricted stock units

Restncted stock units ("REUs") are awarded at no cost to the recipient upon thes grant. RSUs are generally granted annually and
generally vest at a rate of 50% after two vears, 50% after three years, and conver into shares of common stock al the vesting date.
I addition, RSUs typically include full-career eligibility provisions, which allow employees 1o continue 1o vest upon voluntary
termination, subject to post-employment and other restrictions based on age or service-related requirements. All of these awards
are subject 1o forfeiture until vesied and contain clawback provisions that may result in cancellation prior to vesting under certain
specified circumstances. RSUs entitle the recipient to receive cash payments equivalent to any dividends paid on the underlying
common stock during the period the RSUs ane outstanding.
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

18. Share based payments (continued)

Restricted stock units {continued)

Compensation expense for RSUs is measured based wpon the number of shares granted multiplied by the slock prica at the grant
date, and for employee stock options and SARs (stock appreciation righls), is measured at the grant date using the Black-Schaoles
valuation model. Compensation expense for these awards is recognised as described above.

Broad-based employee stock options

No broad-based employes slock oplions were granted i 2018 af in 2019,

The weighted-average share price during the year ended 31 December 2019 was $113.7 (2018: $110.72)

Compensation expense related to stock-based incentives

The total expense for the year relating fo share based payments was $299,742 (2018: 3278 572), all of which relates to equity setiled
share based payments

18. Post balance sheet event

Following the culbreak of the COWVID-19 pandemis in early 2020, the Company and the Firm are manitoring the development of the
pandemic and evaluating its impact on the financial pogition and sperating results of the Company. As al the date on which this set
of financial statements were authorised for issue, because the situation is ongoing and the eventual outcome unknown, the Company
cannot quantify the impact on the financial position, operations or capital position as a resubl of the COVID-18 pandemic. The Company
does not currently anficipate a significant reduction in their capital and liquidity positions over the coming year. For more detail on
Firmwide measunes refer lo operational risk (page 9).

¥l =
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Intertrust
Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited

(

KY1-
9005 190
30 3,500

State Street
Fund Services (lreland) Limited

(

78

State
Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited

(

78

Nikko Asset Management Co., Ltd.

2020 10 173 6,300

107-6242
2020 26 2,893

368

JP
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2020 10 73,272

JP JP
JPMorgan Chase & Co. JP
JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association

Fund Services (lreland) Limited

JP

J.P.
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1993

1960

2020 6 30 10,708

1
https://www._cima.ky/upimages/commonfiles/1594947199QuarterlyListofal IMutualFundsregisteredandlicensedwiththe

CaymanlslandsMonetaryAuthority-30June2020 1594947199 .pdf

2.
A.
1. 1993

2020

CIMA
CIMA

2.
3. 4(4)

CIMA

(i) CIMA
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CIMA
CINA CINA
REEFS
4,268.29 365.85
CINA
4.2
CIMA
CINA
4,268.29
365.85
CIMA
4 3 4 4
Q) 100,000
(i)
(iii)
100,000
(iv) 15
() (i)
CINA 4,268.29
365.85
(iii)
CIMA 3,048.78

365.85
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3.
CINA A 4.2 CINA
4. CINA
43) A.4.3 4(4)

A.3 A.4.3

5. CINA 6
CINA
CIMA

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5
6. CINA

CINA
24,390.24
36,585.37 50 30,487.80 42,682.93
50 8,536.59

3.
A.
1.
2 /
3.

3.1

3.2
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10. 50
11.
12.
4.
CIMA
1. CIMA CIMA
CIMA
2.
1
12,195.12
609.75
3.1
CIMA CIMA CIMA
CIMA
3.2 3.1 121,951.21
3.3 3.1
CIMA
121,951.21
4.
CIMA CIMA
5.1 CIMA 5.3
5.1.1
5.1.2
5.1.3
5.1.4
5.1.5
5.2 5.1 CIMA
CIMA
5.2.1 CIMA

5.2.2 CIMA
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5.2.3

5.2.4 CIMA
5.3 5.1 CIMA

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.3.3

5.3.4

5.3.5
5.4 CIMA 5.3 CIMA
5.5 CIMA

5.3 5.4

5.6 5.3.4 5.3.5

CIMA CIMA
5.7 5.3.5
5.8 5.7
5.9 5.3.4 5.3.5

5.9.1 CIMA CIMA

5.9.2 3 CIMA

CIMA
5.9.3 5.9.2
CIMA

5.10 5.3.4 5.3.5 5.9
5.11 5.9

5.11.1 CIMA

5.11.2

5.11.3

5.11.4

CIMA 5.3.4 5.3.5

5.12 CIMA 5.11

5.3
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5.13 CIMA 5.3.1
5.14 CIMA CIMA
5.15 5.11.3
5.16 CIMA CIMA
6. CINA ©)
(b ©) CIMA
CIMA CIMA
O) (i)
7. CIMA CIMA
@ () ©)
(d)
(M
CIMA (i)
(iii) CIMA CIMA
8. 3 CIMA 6
7 CIMA
9 6 7
CIMA CIMA CIMA
10. 9 7 14 CIMA
11. 6 7 CIMA
12.
13. (@) 6 CINA 7 CIMA () 6
7
(c) 6 7 CIMA
12,195.21 121,951.21
12,195.21

14. (a) 6 7
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)
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20 DRLL
@
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@
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(b)

Q)

CIMA

CIMA

Q)
(i)
(i)
(iv) 3

Q)
(vi)

(i1)

(i)
Gii)
(iv)

)

i) ()

(vit) (i)

viii)

(ix)
)

(xi)
xii)

853.69

)]

3,658.54

(iii)

CIMA

(i)

(in)

9,756.10
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19.

20.
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E.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEE OF PASSIM TRUST
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the sub-funds Series 2016 JPX-Nikkel 225 Fund, Series 2016 JPX-Nikkei
400 Fund, Series 2016 TOPIX Fund and Series 2018 S& P 500 Fund (together the “ sub-funds’) of the PASSIM Trust (or
the “Trust”) , which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity/net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units and statement of cash flows
for the year ended 30 June 2020 and the related notes to the financial statements. These financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financia position of the
sub-funds as at 30 June 2020 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRS”).

Thisreport, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Trust’s unitholders as a body and for
regulatory filing purposes only. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose
or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by
our prior consent in writing.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SA™). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide abasisfor our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin accordance with IFRS,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Trust’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust's financial reporting process.

Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SA
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individualy or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with | SA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Trust’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabl eness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Trust's ahility to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a materia uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosuresin the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

Grant Thornton
George Town,
Cayman Islands
21 December 2020
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Independent auditors' report to the members of JP. Morgan Mansart Management Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, JP. Morgan Mansart Management Limited's financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of its profit for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework", and applicable law); and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual report (the "Annual Report"), which comprise: the balance sheet as

at 31 December 2019; the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance

with these requirements.
Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:
the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
about the company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months

from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the company's ability to

continue as a going concern.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors' report
thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form

of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform
procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
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information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are

required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors' Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Companies Act
2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK) require us also to report
certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors' Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors' Report
for the year ended 31 December 2019 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.
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In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did not identify

any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors' Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors' responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also
responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at: www.frc.org.uk/
auditors responsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors' report.

Use of this report
This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any

other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our
prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Sheena Coutinho (Senior Statutory Auditor)
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for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

London 22 April 2020
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